
County Offices
Newland

Lincoln
LN1 1YL

25 March 2019

Executive

A meeting of the Executive will be held on Tuesday, 2 April 2019 in Committee Room One, 
County Offices, Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL at 10.30 am for the transaction of business set 
out on the attached Agenda. 

Yours sincerely

Debbie Barnes OBE
Head of Paid Service

Membership of the Executive
(8 Members of the Council)

Councillor M J Hill OBE, Executive Councillor for Resources and Communications (Leader of 
the Council)

Councillor Mrs P A Bradwell OBE, Executive Councillor for Adult Care, Health and Children's 
Services (Deputy Leader)

Councillor C J Davie, Executive Councillor for Economy and Place

Councillor R G Davies, Executive Councillor for Highways, Transport and IT

Councillor E J Poll, Executive Councillor for Commercial and Environmental Management

Councillor Mrs S Woolley, Executive Councillor for NHS Liaison and Community Engagement

Councillor C N Worth, Executive Councillor for Culture and Emergency Services

Councillor B Young, Executive Councillor for Community Safety and People Management

Public Document Pack





EXECUTIVE AGENDA
 TUESDAY, 2 APRIL 2019

Item Title Forward 
Plan 
Decision 
Reference

Pages

1 Apologies for Absence 

2 Declarations of Councillors' Interests 

3 Announcements by the Leader, Executive 
Councillors and Executive Directors 

4 Minutes of the Meeting of the Executive held on 
5 March 2019 

5 - 8

NON KEY DECISIONS - ITEMS TO BE RESOLVED BY 
THE EXECUTIVE 

5 Carbon Management Plan 2018-2023 
(To receive a report from the Interim Executive 
Director of Place, which invites the Executive to 
approve and formally adopt the Carbon 
Management Plan 2018-2023 and its target of a 
20% reduction in emissions from a 2016/17 baseline 
of 28,679 tonnes CO2 by 2023)

I017513 9 - 92

Democratic Services Officer Contact Details 

Name: Cheryl Hall
Direct Dial 01522 552113
E Mail Address cheryl.hall@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Please Note: for more information about any of the following please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting

 Business of the meeting
 Any special arrangements
 Copies of reports

Contact details set out above.

All papers for council meetings are available on: 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords


This page is intentionally left blank



1

EXECUTIVE
5 MARCH 2019

PRESENT: COUNCILLOR M J HILL OBE (LEADER OF THE COUNCIL)

Councillors Mrs P A Bradwell OBE (Executive Councillor for Adult Care, Health and 
Children's Services) (Deputy Leader), C J Davie (Executive Councillor for Economy 
and Place), R G Davies (Executive Councillor for Highways, Transport and IT), 
Mrs S Woolley (Executive Councillor for NHS Liaison and Community Engagement) 
and B Young (Executive Councillor for Community Safety and People Management).

Councillor R B Parker (Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board) 
was also in attendance. 

Officers in attendance:-

Debbie Barnes OBE (Head of Paid Service), Steve Blagg (Democratic Services 
Officer), Matthew Fairweather (Senior Engineer), David Forbes (County Finance 
Officer), Glen Garrod (Executive Director of Adult Care and Community Wellbeing), 
Andy Gutherson (Interim Executive Director of Place), Charlotte Hughes (Senior 
Project Leader), Heather Sandy (Interim Director of Education), Jasmine Sodhi 
(Performance and Equalities Manager) and Nigel West (Head of Democratic Services 
and Statutory Scrutiny Officer).

52    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors E J Poll (Executive Councillor 
for Commercial and Environmental Management) and C N Worth (Executive 
Councillor for Culture and Emergency Services).

It was noted that David Forbes (County Finance Officer) was attending the meeting 
on behalf of Pete Moore (Executive Director of Finance and Public Protection). 

53    DAVID FORBES, COUNTY FINANCE OFFICER - RETIREMENT

The Chairman stated that this was the last meeting of the Executive that David 
Forbes (County Finance Officer) would be attending and, on behalf of the Executive, 
the Chairman wished David health and happiness in his retirement.

54    DECLARATIONS OF COUNCILLORS' INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



2
EXECUTIVE
5 MARCH 2019

55    ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE LEADER, EXECUTIVE COUNCILLORS AND 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There were no announcements.

56    MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE EXECUTIVE HELD ON 
5 FEBRUARY 2019

RESOLVED

The minutes of the meeting held on 5 February 2019 be signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record.

57    THE LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL A46 DUNHOLME AND 
WELTON JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT LAND ACQUISITION AND 
ASSOCIATED ORDERS

Consideration was given to a report on behalf of the Interim Executive Director for 
Place which sought the Executive's approval to proceed with making of the 
Compulsory Purchase Order and Side Road Orders for the Dunholme and Welton 
Junction Improvement Scheme.

The Executive Councillor for Highways and Transport stated that this junction was 
dangerous and that there had been numerous accidents.

The Senior Project Leader explained the scheme to the Executive, which included 
information on the consultations with local landowners and the proposed financial 
contribution being made to the scheme because of housing development in 
Dunholme and Welton.

The Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board stated that the 
scheme had been considered and recommended for approval at a meeting of the 
Highways and Transport Scrutiny Committee.  The comments of the Committee were 
included in the report.

RESOLVED

(1) That Lincolnshire County Council make a Compulsory Purchase Order under 
sections 239, 240, 246, 250 and 260 of the Highways Act 1980 and the 
Acquisition of Land Act 1981 generally in the form as set out in Appendices A 
and B to the report to secure the compulsory acquisition of the land shown 
coloured pink on the Order plans at Appendix C and the new rights over the 
land shown coloured blue on the said Order plans on the basis that there is a 
compelling case in the public interest for making this Order.

Page 6



3
EXECUTIVE

5 MARCH 2019

(2) That Lincolnshire County Council make a Side Roads Order under sections 14 
and 125 of the Highways Act 1980 generally in the form as set out in 
Appendices D and E to this report to enable works to be carried out to existing 
highways and private means of access which are necessary to enable the 
Scheme to be built.

(3) That the draft Statements of Reasons for the above mentioned Orders set out 
in Appendix F be approved in principle.

(4) That authority be given to the Interim Executive Director for Place to make, if 
necessary, any minor or technical amendments to the Order referred to in 
paragraph (1) and (2) above or to the Statements of Reasons referred to in 
paragraph (3) above prior to publication of the Orders.

(5) That authority be given to the Chief Legal Officer to seal the Orders and to 
take all the ancillary or necessary steps, including the publication and service 
of all statutory notices and presentation of the County Council’s case at any 
Public Inquiry, to secure the confirmation of the Orders by the Secretary of 
State and the vesting of the land in the County Council.

(6) That authority be given to the Interim Executive Director for Place to request 
confirmation of the Order with modifications, if, in the light of new information, 
it appears expedient for the confirmation of the Order.

(7) That authority be given to the Chief Legal Officer to acquire all third party 
interests in the land and properties subject to the Compulsory Purchase Order 
(whether compulsorily or by agreement) on terms recommended by the Interim 
Executive Director for Place.

58    COUNCIL BUSINESS PLAN 2018/2019 PERFORMANCE REPORT, 
QUARTER THREE

Consideration was given to a report on behalf of the Head of Paid Service which 
presented an overview of performance for Q3 against the Council's Business Plan 
and sought the Executive's approval to the proposed change to reporting as detailed 
in the report.

The Performance and Equalities Manager stated that the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board had considered the Plan at its meeting on 28 February 2019 and 
the comments of the Board had been tabled at the meeting of the Executive.

The Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board stated that the 
Board had identified the following issues in connection with the Plan:-

 The fact that two scrutiny committees had not had an opportunity to consider 
the performance measures relating to their remits before the Board's meeting 
on 28 February 2019. The Board had suggested that only underperforming 
performance measures should be reported, which might allow reports to be 
produced much quicker and therefore provided to earlier meetings of scrutiny 

Page 7



4
EXECUTIVE
5 MARCH 2019

committees.  The Board had also requested that the timetable for scrutiny 
committees could be considered as a means of addressing the issue.

 The Board had sought clarification on the measurement used on the percentage 
of completed safeguarding referrals where the source of the risk was a service 
provider.

 The Board had raised concerns about the target for household waste being 
recycled not being met resulting in more household waste ending up in landfill 
or possibly shipped abroad. A response from officers in connection with the 
enquiry about household waste recycled was outlined in the tabled paper.

The Executive supported the Board's comments, including the need to examine the 
timetable of scrutiny committees, to ensure that performance measures were 
considered in good time and supported the Board's suggestion, as a potential 
solution to ask for commentary only on the performance measures that were 
underperforming.

The Executive Director of Adult Care and Community Wellbeing stated that the Adult 
Care and Community Wellbeing Executive Departmental Management Team had 
proposed to replace Measure 114 – "% of S42 Safeguarding Enquiries where the 
Source of Risk is a service provider", by a measure which would identify the 
proportion of adult safeguarding concerns received in the year that led to a Section 
42 (Care Act 2014) safeguarding enquiry.

Following comments made about household waste recycled, the Interim Executive 
Director for Place stated that the amount of waste going to landfill had not increased 
as a result of the reduction in the amount of household waste being recycled.  It was 
stated that clarification of the targets and collection regime for household waste 
would be examined.

It was highlighted that the Home Office had taken an interest in the Assisting 
Rehabilitation through Collaboration scheme to address the most prolific offenders.

RESOLVED

(1) That the 2018/19 Quarter 3 performance be noted.

(2) That the proposed change to reporting detailed in the report be approved.

The meeting closed at 11.05 am.

Page 8



 
Executive 

 

Open Report on behalf of Andy Gutherson,  
Interim Executive Director of Place 

 

Report to: Executive 

Date: 2 April 2019 

Subject: Carbon Management Plan 2018-2023  

Decision Reference: I017513 

Key decision? No 
 

Summary:  

Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) has been working with the Carbon Trust on 
a third Carbon Management Plan (CMP) which has now been completed. 
 
LCC has successfully implemented two previous CMPs, CMP1 and CMP2 and 
this proposed CMP will continue to build on this success. 
 

 CMP1 committed to a 20% reduction on the 2005/6 baseline by March 
2012. 

 CMP 2 committed to a 22% reduction on the 2011/12 baseline by March 
2018 with the final saving being 23.4%.   

 This CMP outlines LCC’s vision for managing and reducing emissions 
arising from our activities and operations between 2018 to 2023. 

 
The Plan details a programme of actions working towards this target and further 
actions to continue embedding carbon management in the policies and 
practices of the County Council. 
 
Significant changes from the last Plan include 

 improved ability to monitor and report on consumption and emissions as 
a result of Automatic Metering Programme. 

 focus on investing in buildings retained following Property Reviews. 
 
 
 

Recommendation(s): 

That the Executive approve and formally adopt the CMP 2018-2023 attached at 
Appendix A to this Report and its target of a 20% reduction in emissions from a 
2016/17 baseline of 28,679 tonnes CO2 by 2023. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 

Alternatives Considered: 

1. Not to approve the Carbon Management Plan or make amendments to the 
Plan. 
 
The Council needs to have a concerted approach to tackling emissions to 
meet the drivers set out on page 12 of the Plan at Apendix A. 
 
The contents of the Plan have been developed alongside the Carbon Trust 
to identify an appropriate target to build on the work already done and a 
list of projects that taken together will help to achieve the target set. 
 

 

Reasons for Recommendation: 

The Council in carrying out its activities and Lincolnshire schools annually 
spend £10.7m on energy costs. Reducing those emissions by 20% over a 5 
year period will realise a cumulative savings of £12.4 million. The Plan and 
target is an important example of leadership and backs up our recent 
commitment to the government's Emissions Reduction Pledge 2020. 

 

 
1. Background 
 

1.1 As part of the Carbon Trust Local Authority programme LCC prepared its 
first CMP in 2006 (one of first County Councils to do so). That plan was 
adopted in June 2007, for the period 2007-12, and included an aspirational 
target to reduce emissions by 20% by 2012. Data collection issues (now 
resolved) mean it was difficult to accurately assess reductions in emissions 
from the original (inaccurate) 2006-7 baseline. LCC adopted its second CMP 
in 2013 with a reduction target of 22% by March 2018. After the successful 
implementation of CMP2 the final reduction was 23.4%. In recently signing 
the Emissions Reduction Pledge 2020 the Council continues to demonstrate 
leadership in addressing climate change. 

 
1.2 Over £2.6 million has been invested through our Salix Revolving Fund, 

providing annual savings of over £500,000 and reducing base costs 
permanently by this amount. In addition over 1.2MW of solar PV has been 
installed on County Council buildings and schools. Automatic metering is 
installed on over 1000 gas and electric meters in LCC buildings and schools 
and is providing half hourly data on energy consumption. 

 
1.3 Carbon Management 3 Programme 
 

The CMP 3 programme seeks to build on progress achieved from CMP1 & 
CMP2.   
 
The development of Carbon Management Plan 3 has been carried out 
alongside the Carbon Trust whose aims are to:  

Page 10



 

 re-engage public sector organisations with carbon management, 
revisiting and reinvigorating governance structures and stakeholder 
engagement. 

 help public sector organisations identify further opportunities to cut 
their carbon emissions and make on-going cost savings, widening the 
baseline scope where required (e.g. scope 3 emissions) and plugging 
‘gaps’ towards aspirational targets. 

 help public sector organisations update existing carbon strategies 
and improve monitoring and benefits realisation 

 reinforce the financial business case for carbon reduction, with typical 
paybacks under 5 years. 

 enable participants to learn from, mentor and support each other in 
managing carbon. 

 
1.4 The Interim Executive Director of Place is the sponsor with support of the 

Strategic Accessibility and Growth Manager.  
 
1.5 Rising costs  
 

A focus on reducing emissions and cutting costs is an increasing priority. 
The latest baseline information is shown in diagram 1. 

 

Diagram 1 – 2016/17 emissions baseline 

 
Rising energy costs are a factor of modern life. LCC energy costs (including 
all schools) have continued to rise to 10.7m in 2017. There is future price 
uncertainty. Department for Energy and Climate Change medium scenarios 
suggest oil prices 45-64% and Gas prices 59-115% higher by 2020 and are 
generally held to be conservative scenarios.  

 
 

Page 11



 

1.6 The opportunities identified as projects include: 

 Continued investment in proven technologies through LCC's Salix 
revolving fund. 

 Ensuring appropriate investment in rationalised portfolio to ensure 
low energy use in buildings retained. 

 Continued investment in appropriate solar PV schemes. 

 Working with schools to reduce bills and emissions. 

 Street lighting. 

 Travel Plan (including business miles). 

 Appropriate use of automatic metering information to raise awareness 
and monitor performance. 

 Culture change to ensure all staff play a role in carbon management 
and tackle climate change in their professional and personal life.

2. Legal Issues: 
 
Equality Act 2010 

Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the Council must, in the exercise of its 
functions, have due regard to the need to: 

*           Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under the Act 

*           Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it 

*           Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

The relevant protected characteristics are age; disability; gender reassignment; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation 

Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity involves having 
due regard, in particular, to the need to: 

*           Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic 

*           Take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it 

*           Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionately low 

The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different from 
the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to take 
account of disabled persons' disabilities 

Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who share 
a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having 
due regard, in particular, to the need to tackle prejudice, and promote 
understanding 

Page 12



 

Compliance with the duties in section 149 may involve treating some persons more 
favourably than others 

The duty cannot be delegated and must be discharged by the decision-maker.  To 
discharge the statutory duty the decision-maker must analyse all the relevant 
material with the specific statutory obligations in mind.  If a risk of adverse impact is 
identified consideration must be given to measures to avoid that impact as part of 
the decision making process 

An Equality Impact Analysis was carried out by the Sustainability Team. The EIA 
did not identify any positive or adverse impacts from the implementation of CMP3 
which were particular to people with a protected characteristic. The majority of the 
actions contained within the Plan are buildings or technology based and universal 
in their effects and neutral as between people with a protected characteristic and 
others who do not share that characteristic.    It has been identified that the way in 
which the Council engages through its Internal and External Communications work 
stream as part of the Plan needs to be sensitive to the needs of different groups 
such as those with a disability or whose first language is not English to enable all 
people regardless of protected characteristics to benefit from the message. 

 

Joint Strategic Needs Analysis (JSNA) and the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
(JHWS) 

The Council must have regard to the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 
and the Joint Health & Well Being Strategy (JHWS) in coming to a decision 

The CMP supports the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy by tackling the causes 
of climate change which are predicted to affect future climate with knock on health 
effects. Reductions from transport emissions that have been achieved in the 
previous 2 CMP's along with reductions from CMP3 will provide positive health 
benefits from reduced PM(10) and NOx emissions. 
 

 

Crime and Disorder 

Under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the Council must exercise its 
various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those 
functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and 
disorder in its area (including anti-social and other behaviour adversely affecting 
the local environment), the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in its 
area and re-offending in its area 

 

3. Conclusion 
 
3.1 There are significant opportunities identified for further investment and 

savings. The CMP quantifies those opportunities and details how they will 
be achieved (Appendix A). Some projects have been fully quantified and 
costed; others are at an earlier stage. Detailed project sheets are included in 

There is no direct impact on Crime and disorder from the implementation of CMP3. 

Page 13



 

the final Plan. Funding exists for nearly 100% of costed projects. £410,000 
of Salix finance will be committed annually for the LED Street Lighting 
project. If fully implemented those projects already identified would reduce 
annual emissions by about 4,355 tonnes CO2. Accordingly it is proposed 
that a target of reducing emissions by 20% over the Plan lifetime be 
adopted. Those already quantified would meet 76% of the target proposed.  

 
3.2 Much of the programme is about embedding carbon management into 

existing processes. For example investment in those buildings retained to 
minimise energy costs. Likely technologies (which we know have less than 
5 year paybacks) would include insulation, lighting upgrades, boiler settings 
and timings. Another good example is the changes in street lighting policy 
that have already taken place and the way in which traffic signal 
specification reflects best available technology. 

 
3.3 Another key strand of embedding good carbon management practice across 

the authority will be creating ownership across teams and individuals. This 
will enable better decision making across the business. 

 

4. Legal Comments: 
 

The Report invites the Executive to adopt a Carbon Management Plan 2018-
2023.  This contributes to the fulfilment of legal duties at the national level. 
 
The decision is consistent with the Policy Framework and within the remit of the 
Executive. 
 

 

5. Resource Comments: 
 

This report requests the adoption of a Carbon Management Plan 2018-2023.  
Adopting the plan will enable the Council to reduce its carbon emissions and 
make cost savings which will help to mitigate future cost pressures from energy 
price increases. 
 
The cost of the investment projects identified to enable these savings to be 
achieved will be from the existing salix revolving fund and from existing budgets 
as identified. 
 

 
 
6. Consultation 

 
a)  Has Local Member Been Consulted? 

n/a 
 

b)  Has Executive Councillor Been Consulted?  

Yes 

Page 14



 

c)  Scrutiny Comments 

The Committee met on 26 February 2019 and supported the Carbon 

Management Plan 2018 to 2023 as a key corporate strategy for continuing to 

reduce carbon emissions, and highlighted the commendable approach to an 

important global challenge.  

 

In the light of national and international commitments and reports, such as the 

IPCC report on Climate Change and the Paris Agreement, the Committee 

welcomed the Carbon Management Plan. 

 

The Committee highlighted the following recommendations for consideration by 

the Executive –   

 The Committee recognised that climate change issues are cross cutting 

and recommended the Executive consider climate change as part of wider 

decision making and consider how Lincolnshire can become nationally 

recognised as a leader for environmental improvement as it is doing with 

flood resilience work. 

 The Committee highlighted the importance of the decarbonisation of 

transport as a key aim and recommended the Executive consider how the 

County Council could transition to low emission / electric fleet vehicles, 

demonstrating leadership and commitment. 

 The Committee recommended the need for the recently established 

'Corporate Environment Board' to facilitate a greater level of cross 

department activity to aid embedding carbon management in the policies 

and practices across the whole of the County Council. 

 The Committee recommended the Executive consider the possibility of 

exploring the future opportunities for local power generation as a possible 

commercial opportunity.  

 The Committee recommended the Executive revisit the previous success 

of the Schools Collaboration on Resource Efficiency (SCoRE) programme, 

or consider an alternative programme of environmental activity within 

schools as recent take up of the SCoRE programme has reduced since 

becoming a paid for service.  

 The Committee recommended additional work was considered to identify 

and promote appropriate carbon management 'future proofing' activity as 

part of local infrastructure development. 
 

 

 
 

d)  Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out? 

Yes 

e)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

See the body of the Report 
 

Page 15



 

7. Appendices 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Carbon Management Plan 2018-23 

Appendix B Lincolnshire County Council Summary Carbon Management Plan 
2018-2023 

 
 

8. Background Papers 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Second Carbon Management 
Plan 2013-18 

Environment Services, Lancaster House, 36 
Orchard Street, Lincoln LN1 1XX 

First Carbon Management 
Plan 2007-12 

 
 
 
This report was written by Steve Golightly, who can be contacted on 01522 554804 
or steve.golightly@lincolnshire.gov.uk . 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16

mailto:steve.golightly@lincolnshire.gov.uk


  

  

Lincolnshire County Council 
Carbon Management Plan 

 Final 2019 

25th January 2019 

Page 17



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 2 

 

Foreword from Cllr Eddy Poll 

 

 

 

Climate change is one of the most significant challenges facing mankind 

and carbon dioxide is one of the main contributing causes.  We 

recognise the scale and speed of climate change, and its potential 

adverse effect on our economy, environment and local community.  

Therefore as an organisation operating within the heart of Lincolnshire 

we are delighted to present this Carbon Management Plan (CMP).  

 

Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) has made significant progress over 

the last ten years, assisted by our first two CMPs.  As a result we have 

already started to meet our targets of reducing our CO2e emissions and contribute to 

national efforts on carbon reduction.   

 

As an integral part of our vision for the future, LCC is committed to developing 

sustainable practices that will continue to demonstrate our commitment to reduce 

carbon emissions and remain efficient and effective in our operations.  

 

Furthermore, we are committing to the Government's Emissions Reduction Pledge 

2020 which has a voluntary 30% reduction target to reduce greenhouse gas emissions 

across the public sector by 20/21, compared to a 2009/10 baseline. 

 

 

 

 

Cllr Eddy Poll 

Executive Councilor for Commercial and Environmental Management   

 

  

Page 18



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 3 

 

Foreword from the Carbon Trust 

 

 

 

 

Cutting carbon emissions as part of the challenge  against climate 

change should be a key priority for local and city governments 

around the world. The need to bring down carbon emissions to 

prevent global temperature increasing by more than two degrees 

over pre-industrial averages is now urgent. Local authority action 

is a key enabler of this, as councils hold many planning, housing, 

community engagement, taxation and transport powers. Taking 

action in these areas is necessary to bring about a successful and 

prosperous low carbon transition. A clear mitigation strategy for the council estate and 

operations is crucial part of this process - it helps to save money on energy, whilst also 

allowing Lincolnshire to lead by example in reducing the risk of dangerous climate 

change. 

 

Following on from two previously successful CMP's which resulted in significant carbon 

and financial savings, LCC worked with the Carbon Trust in 2017-18  to develop their 3rd 

carbon management CMP3 (2018-2023). This CMP commits LCC to a target of 

reducing CO2e by 20% between 2018 and 2023, and underpins potential 

financial savings to the organisation of around £1.1m over this period. 

 

There are those that can and those that do. Local authorities can contribute significantly 

to reducing CO2e emissions on a local and national scale. The Carbon Trust is proud to 

support LCC in their on-going implementation of carbon management and local area 

climate action planning. 

 

Richard Rugg, 

Managing Director, Carbon Trust 

 

  

Page 19



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 4 

 

Contents 

 

Foreword from Cllr Eddy Poll ................................................................................... 2 

Foreword from the Carbon Trust ............................................................................. 3 

1. Executive Summary ................................................................................... 67 

2. Context ................................................................................................. 1112 

Why is carbon management important? ........................................................... 1112 

Our drivers for tackling climate change ............................................................ 1112 

3. Emissions Baseline and Target .................................................................. 1314 

Scope and Data Sources ................................................................................. 1314 

Baseline and carbon inventory ........................................................................ 1314 

Carbon Reduction Target and Value at Stake .................................................... 1516 

4. Carbon management projects ................................................................... 1617 

Existing projects ............................................................................................ 1819 

Planned / funded projects ............................................................................... 1819 

Potential future projects ................................................................................. 1920 

Projected Achievement towards Target ............................................................. 2021 

5. Implementation ...................................................................................... 2122 

Carbon Management Plan Financing ................................................................. 2122 

Assumptions ................................................................................................. 2122 

Benefits / savings – quantified and un-quantified .............................................. 2223 

Embedding Carbon Management across LCC ..................................................... 2324 

Corporate strategy and policy alignment .......................................................... 2324 

Responsibility – being clear that saving carbon is everyone’s job ......................... 2324 

Programme Management of carbon management .............................................. 2425 

The Programme Board ................................................................................... 2526 

Succession planning ....................................................................................... 2526 

Monitoring and reporting ................................................................................ 2526 

Monitoring and reporting ................................................................................ 2627 

Data and monitoring ...................................................................................... 2627 

Regular progress reporting ............................................................................. 2627 

Annual reporting ........................................................................................... 2627 

Communication of progress to stakeholders ...................................................... 2728 

Data Management ......................................................................................... 2728 

Control of Risks and Issues ............................................................................. 2728 

6. Local area drivers in Lincolnshire .............................................................. 2930 

Page 20



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 5 

 

Climate Change Adaptation ............................................................................. 2930 

Decarbonisation of transport ........................................................................... 3031 

Waste management ....................................................................................... 3132 

Local Industrial Strategy ................................................................................ 3233 

Appendix 1 ...................................................................................................... 3435 

Appendix 2 ...................................................................................................... 6566 

 

  

Page 21



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 6 

 

1. Executive Summary 

 

1.1 This Carbon Management Plan (CMP) sets out our strategy and action plan for 

continuing to reduce carbon emissions over the next 5 years. It identifies the tangible 

and intangible benefits of Carbon Management and describes the governance 

arrangements to keep the programme on track. LCC has successfully implemented two 

previous CMPs, CMP1 and CMP2 and will continue to build on this success. CMP1 

committed to a 20% reduction on the 2005/6 baseline by March 2012 and CMP 2 

committed to a 22% reduction on the 2011/12 baseline by March 2018. This CMP 

outlines LCC’s vision for managing and reducing emissions arising from our activities and 

operations between 2018 to 2023. We have committed to a 20% reduction in emissions 

by 2023, a target which if achieved, will contribute towards cumulative carbon savings of 

20,103 tCO2e over the 5 year life of CMP 3.  

 

1.2. There are a range of reasons for LCC to take action on carbon. These include: 

1) The financial case for action 

a. We are reducing the risk from future energy price increases; meeting our 

planned target would realise £1.1m million in cumulative savings 

b. To ensure economic growth across LCC achieved sustainably. 

c. To stimulate further job opportunities across the region, to develop a clear 

pathway towards clean growth across the county. 

 

2) Legislative pressures and performance targets 

a. We have statutory requirement for Display Energy Certificates (DECs) and 

are aware of how they make the performance of our buildings visible to 

the public. 

b. Greenhouse gas emissions reporting. 

c. Adhere to BEIS voluntary targets. 

d. Emissions reduction pledge 2020. 

 

3) The public perception of climate change 

a. We recognise the local impact of climate change on our services and 

communities 

b. We are leading by example as demonstrated by our signed commitment to 

Climate Local. 

c. To create a positive stance on climate change, to lead the way in 

developing regional mechanisms to reduce carbon emissions.  

 

1.3. The development of CMP3 for LCC is a key deliverable to ensure the council 

meets its carbon reduction targets of 20% by: 

 

1) Installing energy efficiency measures within LCC property portfolio. 

2) Solar PV opportunities within LCC property portfolio. 

3) Upgrading street lights to LED. 

4) Supporting maintained schools to reduce energy use.  

5) Reduction of transport emissions. 

6) Increase electric vehicle charging facilities and electric car usage. 

7) Increase and standardise recycling facilities within LCC offices. 

Page 22



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 7 

 

8) Server & Data Rationalisation. 

9) IT upgrades. 

10) Sustainable Procurement of Services and Goods. 

11) Awareness raising and Carbon Champions. 

12) Reduction of water usage. 
 

1.4. This will assist the council to work as efficiently as possible across all its services, 

operations and buildings.  Work on the above will help the council contribute to the 

following International, National and Local drivers: 

 

1) The Paris Agreement. – The central aim is to strengthen the global response to 

the threat of climate change by keeping a global temperature rise this century 

well below 2 degrees Celsius above pre-industrial levels and to pursue efforts to 

limit the temperature increase even further to 1.5 degrees Celsius. Additionally, 

the agreement aims to strengthen the ability of countries to deal with the impacts 

of climate change. 

 

2) The Climate Change Act. - Commits the UK Government by law to reducing 

greenhouse gas emissions by at least 80% of 1990 levels by 2050. To help 

achieve these targets the Government wants the public and higher education 

sectors to lead by example through reducing bills and driving decarbonisation 

across the UK economy. 

 

3) DEFRA 25 Year Environmental Plan - Sets out government action to help the 

natural world regain and retain good health. It aims to deliver cleaner air and 

water in our cities and rural landscapes, protect threatened species and provide 

richer wildlife habitats. 25 Year Environment Plan. 

 

4) Local Industrial Strategy - In Greater Lincolnshire we have been working to 

develop a Local Industrial Strategy with the aim of future proofing our economy 

and boosting productivity. Clearly this means that there will be a significant 

degree of overlap with existing strategies and delivery plans – not least the 

GLLEP’s Strategic Economic Plan. Specifically the LIS should: 

 

a. Identify local strengths and challenges, future opportunities and the action 

needed to boost productivity, earning power and competitiveness. 

b. Be based on clear rationale for intervention – tightly targeted around a 

specific problem with clarity around why intervention will make a 

difference. 

c. Have a long-term focus and take account of how the economy will evolve 

by 2050 – for example, how global trends such as technological 

change, Brexit, globalisation and demographic change are impacting on 

the local economy. 

d. Identify new ways of working – potentially across sectors, actors, 

organisations and boundaries. 

e. Take a partnership approach to identify what can be driven by businesses 

and local actors alongside national government support. 

f. Focus on improving living standards as well as economic growth. It is not 

just about more jobs but more good quality jobs and better pay. 

Page 23



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 8 

 

20% 

82.8% 

16.3% 0.9% 

Breakdown of carbon 

emissions by source 

Energy Transport Water

g. Align with the national strategy – e.g. drivers of productivity and grand 

challenges 

 

1.5. Reducing our energy consumption not only reduces harmful greenhouse gas 

emissions, but also delivers tangible cost savings. Therefore, this programme contributes 

directly to our goals of: 

 

1) Making the best use of resources. 

 

2) Investing in infrastructure and the provision of services. 

 

3) Commissioning for outcomes based on the community’s needs. 

 

4) Promoting community well-being and resilience. 

 

5) Influencing, co-ordinating and supporting other organisations that contributes to 

the life of Lincolnshire.  
 

1.6.  The inventory of Greenhouse Gas 

(GHG) emissions has been compiled in 

accordance with the World Resources 

Institute’s globally recognised accounting 

methodology, the Greenhouse Gas Protocol 

(GHG Protocol). Emissions arise from our 

activities as a result of the consumption of 

energy in our buildings, transport etc. In 

2016/17 LCC spent £10.7m on energy and 

emitted 28,679 tonnes of CO2e. These 

emissions are generated for running schools 

and council services and through the operation 

of our vehicles. This baseline figure also 

includes water consumption from our buildings 

& schools and miles driven by our contractors 

on behalf of LCC.  

 

1.7. Since 2012 we have reduced our footprint by 14,504 tonnes of carbon and 

reduced related costs by £9.4million. The cumulative carbon savings over the 5 year 

period was 37,010 tonnes of carbon. This reduction was achieved through working with 

LCC buildings, schools, street lighting and a reduction in transport mileage. We have 

therefore set an ambitious carbon reduction target, supported by concrete technical 

projects and embedding actions set out in this Plan. 

 

LCC will reduce the carbon emissions 

from our activities by 20%, from a 

2016/17 baseline of 28,679 tonnes CO
2e 

by 2023 
 

Page 24



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 9 

 

1.8. We have identified carbon reduction projects and activities in the following areas: 

 Street lighting  

 Corporate properties including: 

o Building Management Systems (BMS) 

o Boiler replacement 

o Re-roofing 

o Installation of Solar PV systems 

o Upgrading of lighting to LED 

o Building rationalisation 

 LCC maintained schools 

 

1.9. A range of other projects will also be developed during the lifetime of the plan. 

These are likely to include: 

 

 Property 

 IT 

 Transport 

 Fire & Rescue 

 Procurement 

 

1.10. The projects identified in this plan have the potential to reduce our emissions by 

4,355 tonnes CO2e and achieve 75.9% of our targeted reduction measured against the 

2016/17 baseline. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.11. This means that we will need to develop projects to make up the further 24.1 % 

and to compensate for the business-as-usual growth. To achieve this we will regularly 

review opportunities through the Corporate Environment Programme Board and 

continued liaison with key stakeholders (Corporate Property Team, Transportation, ICT, 

Street lighting and schools).We will also run opportunities identification workshops, 

commission surveys, work with other East Midlands Councils via a newly reinvigorated 

Sustainability Officer Group and local stakeholders to identify and implement best 

practice solutions. 

 

1.12. We identified 22 projects with payback periods shorter than 10 years. This Plan 

contains the actions and projects LCC will undertake to reduce emissions and associated 

costs. This will be achieved through a variety of different projects, including upgrading 

building and street lighting to LEDs, upgrading building heating & BMS systems and 

energy efficiency work with LCC's maintained schools. The cost of implementing the 

projects in this plan has been estimated at £5,035,541, with anticipated financial savings 

of £178k per annum by 2023. If all the projects in this plan were implemented, the 

 

 Energy management 

 Green buildings  

 Staff awareness 

 LEDs  

 Solar PV 

 

Target: 20% 

(5,736 tCO2e) 

Existing Projects: 

14.2% (817 tCO2e) 

Identified Projects: 

61.7% (3,539 tCO2e) 

Page 25



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 10 

 

overall payback period on the capital investment has been calculated as 6.5 years. Due 

to the long duration of the projects to be implemented, these projects will yield savings 

well beyond the lifetime of this plan.  

 

1.13. We have secured funding of £5,035,541 from: LCC's revolving Salix Fund, Salix 

SEELS funding, Capital and R&M budget. The remaining identified projects have not been 

costed, but we will be looking to fund those projects and others that are identified during 

the lifetime of the plan from the above sources. 

 

1.14. The CMP is a corporate document and as such will have LCC wide ownership. The 

sustainability team will monitor the progress of the plan and report to various internal 

groups with responsibility for plan delivery. To deliver this plan, we have set up a team 

and governance structure that will ensure successful implementation. This includes: 

 

 Corporate Environment Programme Board 

 Corporate Management Board 

 Environmental Scrutiny Committee 

 

1.15. The Project Sponsor is Andy Gutherson, County Commissioner - Economy & Place 

and he has the overall accountability for the delivery of this plan and the achievement of 

our targets. We will embed carbon management into our organisational structures and 

processes by setting up a Corporate Environment Programme Board who will oversee the 

management and progress of our CMP. We will undertake a review of our policies to 

understand how carbon management can be further integrated into our organisational 

strategy.  

 

1.16. Progress against this plan will be reviewed annually in July and a report will be 

provided to Corporate Environment Programme board, Corporate Management Board 

and Environmental Scrutiny Committees and made publicly available on our website.  

The progress of the CMP will be discussed and reviewed by the Environment Programme 

Board. Progress will be monitored against the targets set within this plan and established 

KPIs at defined intervals. 

  

Page 26



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 11 

 

2. Context 

 

Why is carbon management important? 

 

2.1 Over the past century, human activities have released large amounts of 

greenhouse gases, such as carbon dioxide (CO2), into the atmosphere. The majority of 

these emissions have come from burning fossil fuels to produce energy, although 

industrial processes, deforestation and some agricultural practices also emit greenhouse 

gases into the atmosphere. These gases cause more heat to be trapped in the Earth’s 

atmosphere, leading to an increase in global temperatures. This is known as global 

warming.  

 

2.2 A warming planet will result in a multitude of adverse effects on natural systems, 

causing increases in extreme weather conditions, changing rainfall patterns and rising 

sea levels. The latest Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) report is very 

clear that this will affect water supplies, agriculture, power, transport and infrastructure, 

as well as human health. Many of these impacts are already becoming apparent. Climate 

change is globally recognised as one of the greatest environmental and economic 

threats. LCC is determined to play a full part in delivering on our collective responsibility 

to reduce carbon emissions. 

 

Our drivers for tackling climate change 

 

2.3 The UK has made specific domestic and international commitments to reducing 

emissions of greenhouse gases. Many public sector bodies and private businesses are 

taking a strategic view of carbon emissions, under pressure from regulation, market 

forces and stakeholders. Local Authorities are subject to many of these drivers, shown in 

more detail below. LCC therefore recognises the significant role it can play in helping to 

accelerate national transitions towards developing a low carbon economy.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 12 

 

 

 

 

  

1) Climate Change Act 
This act commits the UK government to reducing emissions by at 
least 80% in 2050 compared to 1990 levels. The 80% target 
includes GHG emissions from the devolved administrations, which 
currently accounts for around 20% of the UK’s total emissions. 

2) Leadership 
Taking strategic action towards reducing carbon emissions will 
ensure that LCC can lead the way in developing effective 
mechanisms to tackle climate change. This will help stimulate 
regional low carbon transitions across the Lincolnshire area. 

3) Cost savings 
With increasing pressure on local authorities to cut costs, reducing 
the amount spent on energy bills is a key driver for lowering our 
energy consumption. 

4) Reputation 
Stretching national targets are increasing pressure on local 
authorities to be seen as "doing their bit" and playing a leadership 
role on climate change action. LCC is leading by example by striving 
to minimise our environmental impacts as failure to act may lead to 
reputational risks that adversely affect the council's public image. 

5) Building regulations 
Building regulations contain requirements that relate to the 
conservation of both fuel and power. There are set minimum energy 
performance standards for new buildings and major refurbishments 
of existing buildings, which the council subsequently has to meet.  

6) Local area drivers 

In addition to the above we are driven to take action on climate 
change adpatation measures, local waste management, the 
decarbonisation of transport and intergrating our efforts with the 
local industrial strategy (LIS) in Lincolnshire (see section 6).  

  

Page 28



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 13 

 

3. Emissions Baseline and Target 

 

3.1 The carbon baseline is a record of our approximate carbon emissions in a chosen 

year 2016/17. Targets and performance in reducing emissions are measured against this 

figure as a percentage of the baseline value. This section outlines what parts of our 

organisation’s emissions are included in the baseline and how we have calculated it.  

 

Scope and Data Sources 

 

3.2 The scope of LCC's baseline emission calculations covers: street lighting, council 

buildings, maintained schools, fire stations, museums and direct and indirect vehicles 

fuel operations that support our services. Academy schools are not included because we 

have limited influence and control over schools not directly maintained by the council. 

Additionally libraries and waste are not included in our footprint.  The carbon footprint of 

LCC's waste is significant and detailed further in Section 6.7. The impact of adding such 

a large carbon source to our reporting was to greatly reduce the significance of the 

positive work LCC are doing to reduce its footprint in other areas. It was considered that 

dealing with the waste stream separately would have a positive impact on commitment 

across the authority.  

 

3.3 The emission sources we’ve included in our baseline are listed below, divided into 

Scopes 1, 2 and 3, in accordance with the World Resources Institute GHG Protocol 

standards, to enable comparison with other organisations.  

 

Emissions sources included in baseline 

scope 
  

Data sources and quality 

Scope 1 -  includes all direct emissions from sources directly controlled by LCC -  fuels 
consumed on site and from owned vehicles 

 Fuel use in buildings and estates 
(e.g. natural gas and burning oil) 

 Primary data of high quality 

 Fleet transport emissions (e.g. 
petrol and diesel) 

 Primary data of high quality 

Scope 2 – emissions from purchased energy produced off site. 

 Electricity consumption for street 

lighting and in buildings and 
estates 

 Primary data of high quality 

Scope 3 - all other emissions  

 Business travel (contractor and 
leased vehicles) 

 Primary data of high quality 

Baseline and carbon inventory 

 

3.4 In order to develop a successful CMP up to 2023, we need to understand our 

current emission performance in a baseline year. We have chosen 2016/17 as our 

baseline year, which is the most recent financial year with a full data set.  

 

Page 29



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 14 

 

3.5 Table 1 identifies emissions sources relevant to our plan’s scope. The cost of 

providing power to our streetlights, buildings and transport services is high. In 2016/17 

we spent £10.7m on these activities and emitted 28,679 tonnes of CO2e. 83% of these 

emissions arise from building energy use and street lighting. 

 

 
 

Energy Transport Water Total 

 
Baseline CO2e 

emissions (tonnes) 

 
23,783 

 

 
4,635 

 
262 

 

 
28,679 

 
Baseline Cost (£) 

 

 
£5,629,370 

 

 
£4,416,076 

 

 
£647,374 

 

 
£10,692,819 

 

Table 1: Breakdown of baseline CO2 emissions for 2016/17 

 

  

Graph 1: Breakdown of baseline CO2 emissions for 2016/17 

 

3.6 The graph above shows our carbon emissions split into the sources of energy, 

transport and water. The graph on the right shows the relative cost of those emissions 

which differ due to the relative cost of the emissions sources.  

 

 

82.9% 

16.2% 0.9% 

Breakdown of carbon 

emissions by source 

Energy Transport Water

52.6% 
41.3% 

6.1% 

Breakdown of carbon related 

costs by source 

Energy Transport Water

Page 30



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 15 

 

We will 

reduce the 

carbon 

emissions 

from our 

activities by 

20% by 2023, 

from a 

2016/17 

baseline of 

28,679 

tonnes CO2e. 

TARGET FOR 

2023 

 Cost savings 

 Raised 
awareness 

of climate 
change 
amongst 
staff, 
stakeholders 
and the 
public 

 Positive 
community 
leadership 

 Contribute 
towards 
national 
targets 

 Compliance 
with 
legislation 

 

BENEFITS OF 

ACHIEVING 
THE TARGET 

Carbon Reduction Target and Value at Stake     

Our vision is to maintain a leading role in local efforts to reduce the 

impacts of climate change. To achieve this aim we have set targets that 

are challenging, yet realistic.  

 

The Value at Stake 

The Value at Stake (VAS) shows the cumulative potential savings, or 

avoidable costs/carbon emissions, associated with implementing our CMP 

and achieving our target against the alternative of doing nothing, i.e. 

Business as Usual (BAU). Achieving a 20% reduction in carbon emissions 

by 2023, against a 2016/17 baseline will result in final year emissions 

figure of 22,943 tCO2e and cumulative savings of 27,730tCO2e. 

 

 

With no action on carbon, annual utility costs for LCC could increase from 

£10.7m to £14.2m by 2023 – an increase of approx. £3.5m. Achieving a 

20% reduction in carbon emissions over the whole five years could result 

in cumulative savings of £12.4m. 

 

The VAS is a useful high level analysis that has been used early in the 

development process of producing our Carbon Management Plan to help 

support the case for action. It should be noted that project specific details 

about savings and costs should be read alongside this analysis. The 

capital costs of projects are not included in this analysis (see section 4). 

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

C
O

2
 E

m
is

s
io

n
s
 (

to
n
n
e
s
) 

Comparision of Emissions with predicted BAU increase and reduction targets  

BAU 20% reduction

£0

£5,000,000

£10,000,000

£15,000,000

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

C
o
s
t 

(£
) 

Comparision of Carbon related costs with BAU increases and reduction targets 

BAU 20% reduction

Page 31



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 16 

 

4. Carbon management projects  

 

We have identified projects that could save 4,355 tonnes of CO2 

and achieve 75.9% of our 20% target 

 

4.1 This section of the plan lists and prioritises the opportunities identified for carbon 

emissions savings and sustainable practices that are critical to ensuring LCC achieves the 

five-year reduction target. The projects were identified through a project identification 

workshop, with staff representing different areas of LCC, energy survey of our sites and 

calculation provided by the properties team. We quantified the projects to understand 

the cost and benefits of each of them. We then prioritised them based on ease of 

implementation and savings potential, payback period under 10 years. A Carbon 

Management Projects Register will be maintained by the Sustainability Team to record, 

quantify and evaluate projects on an ongoing basis. It will be presented at the quarterly 

Environment Programme Board. Planned projects are described in more detail in 

Appendix 1 

 

4.2 The projects are split into the following sections:  

 Existing projects: those that are being implemented or have been implemented 

since the baseline year and will therefore deliver savings with respect to the 

baseline 

 Planned / funded projects: those that have already been approved and have 

funding allocated 

 Potential future projects: further opportunities identified, where emissions 

reductions and savings need to be calculated after discussions with the relevant 

area. 

 

4.3 The following table summarises the key costs and savings associated with the 

projects in the project list. 

 

Section Title Project Category Capital (£) 
Annual 

energy cost 
saving (£) 

Annual 
carbon 
saving 

(tCO2e) 

Average 
Payback 

(yrs) 

% project 

contributes 
to meeting 

lifetime  
target 

Existing projects Committed Salix 

revolving fund 

projects 
£296,394 £40,529 163.3 7.3 14.2% 

Planned/funded 

projects 
R&M Re-roof £709,661 £3,200 35.7 222 3.1% 

R&M Boiler 

Replacement 

Programme 
£170,500 £15,500 173.0 11 15.1% 

R&M BMS 
£14,986 £1,000 10.2 15 0.9% 

PV – Buildings 
£30,000 £3,320 7.6 9 0.7% 

Page 32



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 17 

 

Fenland Green Power 

Solar PV 
External 
funding 

£6,440 15.2 N/A 1.3% 

LED Lighting 
£214,000 £30,500 109.0 7 9.5% 

Building 

Rationalisation 
R&M funding £16,000 168.0 N/A 14.6% 

Water Usage 
£ TBD £ TBD TBD TBD TBD 

Replacement of 

Sodium Street 

Lighting Ballasts to 

LED 

£3,600,000 £63,654 189.0 56.6 16.5% 

Potential future 

projects 

EV Charging via 

Street Lighting 

Columns 
£ TBD £ TBD TBD TBD TBD 

Reduction of 

Transport emissions £ TBD £ TBD TBD TBD TBD 

IT Upgrades 
£ TBD £ TBD TBD TBD TBD 

Server & Data 

Rationalisation £ TBD £ TBD TBD TBD TBD 

Fire & Rescue Vehicle 

Telematics £ TBD £ TBD TBD TBD TBD 

Internal and External 

Communication £ TBD £ TBD TBD TBD TBD 

School Visit Co-

ordination £ TBD £ TBD TBD TBD TBD 

Carbon - 

Environmental Impact 

Assessment 
£ TBD £ TBD TBD TBD TBD 

Procurement of 

Services and Goods 
£ TBD £ TBD TBD TBD TBD 

Go Paperless 
£ TBD £ TBD TBD TBD TBD 

Carbon Champions 
£ TBD £ TBD TBD TBD TBD 

 Total £5,035,541 £180,143 871.0 N/A 75.9% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 33



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 18 

 

Target Summary  

Target reduction from 2016/17 levels 5,736 tCO2e 

Predicted increase from BAU growth 1,019 tCO2e 

Identified savings 4,355 tCO2e 

Gap to target (inc. BAU growth) 2,400 tCO2e 

 

4.4 A Carbon Management Projects Register will be maintained by the Project Lead to 

record, quantify and evaluate projects on an ongoing basis. 

 

Existing projects 

4.5 This section includes projects that are already underway or have been completed 

since the baseline year. These schemes have been fully costed and, where relevant, 

Salix agreements signed.   

 

ID Project Lead 

Cost 

Annual 

Savings (yr 1) Pay 

back 

(yrs) 

% of 

Target 

Start 

Year Capital Operational 

Financial 

(Gross) tCO
2
 

 1 

Committed 

Salix 

revolving 

fund 

projects 

Steve 

Golightly 
£296,394  £40,529 163.3 7.3 11.8 2017 

Totals £296,394 
 

£40,529 163.3 7.3 14.2   

 

Planned / funded projects  

4.6 This section shows projects that are definitely planned to take place and have 

funding allocated.  They will be funded from LCC revolving Salix Fund, Salix SEELS 

funding, Capital and R&M budget. Project sheets detail the levels of confidence in the 

figures for each project. 

 

ID Project Lead 

Cost 

Annual Savings 

(yr1) Pay 

back 

(yrs) 

% of 

Target 

Start 

Year Capital Operational 

Financial 

(Gross) tCO
2
 

 2 R&M Re-roof 
Andy 

Fenn  
- £709,661 £3,200 35.7 221.8 3.1 2018  

 3 

R&M Boiler 

Replacement 

Programme 

Andy 

Fenn  
- £170,500 £15,500 173.0 11.0 15.1  2018 

 4 R&M BMS 
Andy 

Fenn  
- £14,986 £1,000 10.2 15.0 0.9  2018 

5 PV – Buildings 
Dave 

Pennington 
£30,000 - £3,320 7.6 9.4 0.7 2018 

Page 34



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 19 

 

6 
Fenland Green 

Power PV 
Andy Fenn External - £6,440 15.2  N/A 1.3 2018 

7 LED Lighting Andy Fenn  £214,000 £30,500 109.0 7.0 9.5 2018 

8 
Building 

Rationalisation 

Katie 

Gosling 
- - £16,000 168.0 N/A 14.6 2018 

9 Water Usage 
Kevin 

Kendall 
TBD TBD £ TBD TBD TBD TBD 2018 

10 

Replacement 

of Sodium 

Street 

Lighting 

Ballasts to 

LED 

Patrick 

Cant 
£3,600,000 0 £63,654 189.0 9.4 16.5 2018 

Totals £3,630,000 £1,109,147  £174,235 707.7    61.7   

 

Potential future projects 

4.7 This section lists further projects under consideration, which are not yet funded. 

The numbers included are estimates and further work is needed to evaluate the projects 

in more detail. 

 

ID Project Lead 

Cost 

Annual 

Savings (yr 

1) Pay 

back 

(yrs) 

% of 

Target 

Start 

Year Capital Operational 

Financial 

(Gross) tCO
2
 

 11 

EV Charging 

via Street 

Lighting 

Columns 

Patrick Cant TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD 

 12 

Reduction of 

Transport 

emissions 

Steve 

Roberts 
TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD 

 13 IT Upgrades 
 John 

Wickens 
TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD 

14 
Server & Data 

Rationalisation 

John 

Wickens 
TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD 

15 

Fire & Rescue 

Vehicle 

Telematics 

Dave 

Hopkins 
TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD 

16 

Internal and 

External 

Communication 

Tim Smith TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD 

17 
School Visit 

Co-ordination 

Shaun 

Brown 
TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD 

18 
Carbon - 

Environmental 

Impact 

George 

Spiteri/Andy 

Gutherson 

TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD 

Page 35



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 20 

 

Assessment 

19 

Procurement of 

Services and 

Goods 

Fiona 

Fielding 
TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD 

20 Go Paperless 
Fiona 

Fielding 
TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD 

21 
Carbon 

Champions 

Cathryn 

Coates 
TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD 

Totals               

 

Projected Achievement towards Target 

4.8 The figure below shows how far the existing and identified (planned and 

potential) projects take us towards the target. If all these projects are implemented, we 

expect to achieve 75.9% of our targeted savings.  We will need to identify further 1,380 

tonnes of emissions savings to fill the gap and make up for the BAU upward drift. The 

following mechanisms were put in place to ensure sustained project pipeline:  

 

 Continued liaison with key stakeholders: 

o Corporate Property Team 

o Transportation 

o ICT 

o Street lighting 

o Schools 

 Opportunity workshops. 

 Regularly review opportunities through the Environment Programme Board 

 Work with other East Midlands Councils via a newly reinvigorated Sustainability 

Officer Group. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Target: 20% 

(5,736 tCO2) 

Existing Projects: 14.2% 

(817 tCO2) 
Identified Projects: 61.7% 

(3,539 tCO2) 

Gap 75.9%:  

(1,380 tCO2) 

Page 36



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 21 

 

5. Implementation  

 

5.1 This section covers the main elements required to move from planning to 

implementation.  This includes our financing strategy, governance structure, monitoring 

and reporting mechanisms. We also describe the activities that will help us embed 

carbon management within LCC and drive the changes in behaviour that will lead to 

long-term, sustained savings and low carbon practice. 

 

Carbon Management Plan Financing 

5.2 In Section 4 we have described the projects we will implement to achieve our 

target; we have also identified capital and revenue costs for these projects.  This section 

summarises the funding required year by year, describes where it will come from and 

identifies any gaps where funding may not yet be secured.   

 

5.3 The cost of implementing existing and planned projects in this plan has been 

estimated at £5,035,541 over five years, of which £5,035,541 has already been 

allocated. 

Assumptions 

5.4 Key assumptions underlying our financial projections are: 

 Electricity cost of 11p 2016/17 in the baseline year and an annual increase of 

10% in the following years 

 Gas cost of 1.5p 2016/17 in the baseline year and an annual increase of 8% in 

the following years 

 BAU consumption will increase by 0.5% annually. 

 Utility Price will increase by 4.0% annually1 

 Transport prices will increase by 3.7%.2  

 

 

  

                                           
1 Based on BEIS 2017 electricity price projections “central scenario” 
2 Based on BEIS 2017 fossil fuel projections “central scenario”  

To implement existing and planned projects defined in this plan it will cost 

£5,035,541 of which £5,035,541 has already been allocated. It has not been 

possible to establish costs for all of the potential future projects and these will 

need to be established over the coming years. 

When existing and planned projects are implemented it will result in estimated 

annual financial savings £180k. The overall payback period of the projects in 

this plan is 6.5 years (not accounting for R&M Re-roof and replacement of 
street lighting to LED) and 28 years when considering all projects. 

Page 37



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 22 

 

5.5 Benefits / savings – quantified and un-quantified 

 

Unquantified benefits: 

 regulatory compliance 

 improved reputation with staff, stakeholders and the public 

 reduced maintenance costs relating to street lighting, signs and signals schemes 

 financial savings from reduced water use and bills  

 

5.6 We believe that our CMP offers a compelling and robust business case for 

implementation, taking into account direct cost savings to LCC, enhanced staff comfort, 

improved visitor experience, benefits to LCC reputation, and the vital leadership role of 

local government in tackling climate change.  

 

 

 

5.7 If all the projects are implemented as planned it would result in estimated 

reduced energy expenditure of £174,235 per annum by 2023, based on 2018 prices. The 

overall payback period of the projects in this plan is approx. 6.5 years3. Whilst this 

payback time is longer than the lifetime of the plan, it reflects the long duration of a 

substantial number of projects outlined in the plan. These projects will provide cost and 

carbon savings well beyond 2023 and will payback their capital investment over this 

longer time period. 

 

5.8 It should be noted that the analysis included in this section does not account for 

inflation and all figures are shown at today’s prices. If inflation was included, we would 

expect energy cost savings to be higher as energy prices are increasing at a rate well 

above RPI. It should also be noted that costs for certain projects scheduled for later 

years may also be higher for the same reason but this will not be the case for all projects 

– certain technologies such as LED lighting continue to reduce in cost. 

 

                                           
3 Figure does not include R2 or R10 

 £(5)

 £(4)

 £(3)

 £(2)

 £(1)

 £-

 £1

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

N
et

 C
o

st
 (

£
 M

ill
io

n
s)

 

Year 

Project Cost and Savings 

Total Capex for year Total Opex for year Energy cost savings for year

Total Revenue for year Total Cash flow for year

Page 38



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 23 

 

Embedding Carbon Management across LCC 

5.9 To continue embedding a culture of carbon management across the organisation 

we need to ensure that organisational changes (processes, strategies and activities) are 

put in place, in addition to the more technical projects listed above, to support the 

transition to achieve and sustain our vision for carbon management.   

 

5.10 This section describes the main activities and changes that will help us achieve 

this. 

  

Corporate strategy and policy alignment 

5.11 To ensure that carbon management is maintained, as an organisational priority, it 

needs to be considered as part of all decision making.  In particular we will: 

 

 Gain senior endorsement and publication of our carbon management plan and 

carbon reduction target through Council Executive. 

 Continue to include the carbon reduction target in our Business Plan and other 

high level strategies. 

 Update the Environmental Policy and create a Sustainability Strategy. 

 Include carbon reduction in relevant policies – through review of key policies (e.g. 

procurement, mileage rates). 

 

Change Action Lead Completion 

Date 

Endorsement / sign off of this plan and the associated 

20% reduction target by [senior staff] 

Project Sponsor January 2019 

All business cases submitted to financial management 

to be appraised for carbon reduction as well as costs & 

payback 

Project Lead / Project 

Sponsor /  Finance 

Ongoing 

Inclusion of the risks arising from not meeting our 

carbon reduction target included in the Corporate risk 

register 

Project Sponsor February 

2019 

Inclusion of our Carbon reduction targets in Business 

Plan and Annual Report 

Project Sponsor Ongoing 

Review and re-alignment of all CMP Environmental 

Statements to take account of the Carbon 

Management Plan 

Project Lead / Project 

Sponsor 

March 2019 

Development of a sustainable procurement policy to 

take account of low carbon procurement 

Procurement April 2019 

Review of existing policies to decide where alignment 

with the Carbon Management Plan is relevant 

Project Sponsor February 

2019 

 

Responsibility – being clear that saving carbon is everyone’s job 

5.12 To make sure that carbon reduction is not just seen as the responsibility of a few 

people in the organisation, but is truly embedded and part of our organisational culture 

we will continue to work with the Communications Team to disseminate relevant 

information to staff colleagues. 

Page 39



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 24 

 

 

ID Change  Action Owner When complete 

 01 Communication & engagement on the 

carbon management programme to LCC 

stakeholders 

Project Lead  December 2018 

02 Publication of this CMP on the intranet and 

internet 

Project Lead January 2019 

 

Programme Management of carbon management  

5.13 In this section our governance structure for carbon management is shown. The 

following sections provide further detail of who is responsible for which areas of work 

and how progress is reported. 

 

 

 

5.14 In this section our governance structure for carbon management is shown (see 

above diagram).  

Environment 

Programme 

Board 

Directorate 

Managemen

t Teams 

 

Others (staff, 

key partner 

organisations 

etc. as per 

Communicatio

ns Plan 

Executive 
Corporate 

Management 

Board 

Environmental 

Scrutiny 

Committee 

Reporting to 

 

Information 

flow 

Full Council 

Page 40



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 25 

 

 

5.15 Andy Gutherson (County Commissioner - Economy & Place) holds overall 

responsibility for the implementation of this carbon management plan, with day to day 

management of the Plan being carried out by Vanessa Strange (Strategic Accessibility 

and Growth Manager) and Steve Golightly (Senior Sustainability Officer), coordinating 

the activity to ensure results are achieved. 

 

The Programme Board  

5.16 The Carbon Management Plan is a key element of the Commissioning Strategy: 

Protecting and Sustaining the Environment. 

 

5.17 The Council has established a Corporate Environment Programme Board to 

effectively manage operational delivery of the plan. The group meets quarterly and is 

chaired by the County Commissioner - Economy & Place and its membership seeks to 

cover: 

 

 A representation of key officers involved in project delivery 

 Specialist skills (Communications, ICT, Transport, Property etc.) 
 

5.18 And its terms of reference, in brief, require it to provide: 

 

 Ownership and support 

 Monitoring and reporting 

 Service area expertise 

 Opportunity recognition 

 Project lead 

 

Succession planning  

5.19 One of the greatest risks to the successful implementation of this plan is the loss 

of the Project Sponsor and/or Project Leader.  Good succession planning is therefore 

essential.  In the event of the Project Sponsor moving on, Kevin Kendall, County 

Property Officerwill take on the role and responsibility for this plan; in the event on the 

Project Leader leaving, Steve Golightly (Sustainability Team) will take over the 

coordination of the implementation of this plan.   

 

Monitoring and reporting 

5.20 This section describes actions we will take to improve the quality of our carbon 

emissions data and the data gathering process, and how we will measure and report on 

our progress.  Robust data will provide us the basis to monitor and report on the results 

of our action and it will help to drive behaviour change. Our comprehensive metering will 

assist in this. 

 

5.21 Appendix 2 lists the sources of data and where responsibility lies for its collection. 

Installed automatic metering provides day plus one half hourly data on electricity and 

gas consumption for over 90% of our sites. In some instances (smaller sites, those 

Page 41



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 26 

 

where signal unavailable for example) that data is supplemented by bill or financial data. 

Nathaniel Dyas (Kier Lead Energy manager) will be responsible for capturing and 

monitoring building energy data utilising TEAM software. Carbon data will be compiled 

and monitored by Steve Golightly (Sustainability Team) for the purposes of reporting 

progress.  

 

5.22 The following actions have been agreed with regards to further improving data 

and monitoring:  

 

 Completion of metering programme and system of quarterly reporting on energy 

and water consumption.  

 Agreement on strategy on how to get the best from our meters. 

 Where appropriate use of finance systems to monitor energy consumption. 

 

Monitoring and reporting  

5.23 This section describes actions we will take to improve the quality of carbon 

emissions data and the data gathering process, and how will we report on our progress. 

Robust data will provide the basis to monitor and report on the results of our actions and 

it will help to drive behaviour change.  

 

Data and monitoring  

5.24 The following actions have been agreed with regards to data and monitoring: 

 

Regular progress reporting  

5.25 Vanessa Strange (Strategic Accessibility and Growth Manager) will report on 

progress of the carbon management programme quarterly to the Corporate Environment 

Programme Board and will generate regular highlight reports covering: 

 

 Project Description. 

 Overall summary - summary and status reflecting how the CMP3 project is 

performing. 

 Progress against individual projects (red/amber/green). 

 Key Milestones - tasks updated to reflect the % complete. 

 Top Risks. 

 Top Issues.    

 

Annual reporting  

5.26 The Project Leader will compile an annual report each July to report on progress 

of the carbon management programme.  The report will be signed-off by the Project 

Sponsor and submitted to Environmental Programme Board, Economy and Environment 

ID Change  Action Owner When complete 

 01 Annual CMP Report to Scrutiny   Project Lead   Annually 

Page 42



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 27 

 

Scrutiny Committee and Corporate Management Board and will be available on the 

council’s website. 

 

5.27 The annual report will cover: 

 

 Greenhouse gas emissions and carbon baseline data 

 Performance and progress  

 

Communication of progress to stakeholders  

5.28 We will communicate our performance to staff and other stakeholders and use 

this as an opportunity to raise awareness of the carbon implications of their behaviour. A 

project to communicate to staff and the public messages about environmental matters 

including carbon savings is planned. The idea would be to encourage the buy in from 

staff as well as encouraging the public to save energy and understand what the council is 

doing. 

 

Data Management 

5.29 Effective data management has been a critical element of developing this plan. It 

underpins our strategy and target and it will continue to be a critical element as we 

monitor implementation progress. Having confidence in our figures, assumptions and 

data sources helps ensure that: 

 

 High priority areas are targeted: a good understanding of where our emissions 

are coming from will allow us to identify high emitters and prioritise projects that 

tackle these.  

 Suitable carbon reduction targets are set: targets should be challenging but 

achievable to ensure maximum impact. 

 Carbon reduction projects are accurately quantified: this will allow us to 

predict the impact a project will have on carbon emissions and how effective our 

portfolio of projects will be at achieving our target. 

 Business / investment cases are credible and accurate: accurate 

estimations of costs and savings ensure that funds are used in the most cost 

effective way. 

 The effectiveness of carbon reduction projects can be measured and 

demonstrated: this allows progress against target to be tracked and strengthens 

the business case for future investment. 

 Continuity and succession planning is not problematic (data sources / 

referencing): all activities should be well documented and referenced to ensure 

smooth hand over of responsibility. 

 

Control of Risks and Issues 

 

5.30 Any member of the Project Board or Project Team may raise an Issue or Risk with 

the Project Manager. They should be communicated verbally and confirmed in writing 

within 24hrs. The Project Manager will then record the Issue/Risk on the appropriate log 

and allocate a reference number. The Logs will be maintained with each Issue or Risk 

being allocated a status of either “Acknowledged”, “In Progress” or “Resolved”. All risks 

Page 43



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 28 

 

are monitored and updated in a detailed Risk Register maintained by the Project 

Manager. 

 

5.31 Some of the key risks associated with the plan are set out below: 

 

 

  

Resources unavailable to achieve actions identified 

Reputational risk to authority for not pursuing or meeting carbon 
reduction targets 

Carbon management not seen as a strategic priority at LCC 

Lack of buy-in by staff reduces participation in relevant carbon reduction 
projects 

Potential for a higher than predicted increase in energy demand threatening 
the ability to meet the carbon reduction target 

Page 44



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 29 

 

6. Local area drivers in Lincolnshire 

 

Climate Change Adaptation 

6.1 This section outlines the potential effects of climate change on the Lincolnshire 

region, highlighting the crucial need for effective adaptation mechanisms across the 

region. It also outlines the follow-on actions that the council is taking towards reducing 

the impacts of climate change.  

 

Objective: Develop an adaptation strategy  

 

6.2 While transitioning to low carbon, energy efficient cities and regions are 

absolutely necessary. It is also important to consider the climate risks to low carbon 

infrastructure, as well as potential synergies and conflicts between adaptation and 

mitigation activities. 

 

6.3 In the face of economic growth, LCC and surrounding regions are exposed to a 

number of weather and climate-related hazards as a result of a changing climate.  

Climate-related hazards that pose a distinct threat to the region include:  

 

1. Sea level rise: 40% of Lincolnshire is at or below sea level thus is at risk from 

coastal flooding. Sustained sea level rise in the future is therefore likely to 

increase this risk and requires further investigation work. 

 

2. An increase in seasonal extremes: UK climate change projections also indicate 

that extreme weather incidences are also set to increase. This will mean that 

Lincolnshire alongside the rest of the UK may experience more intense localised 

rainfall events. During the summer months, extreme temperatures may increase 

pressure on 25% of the country's Grade 1 agricultural land in Southern 

Lincolnshire along 12% of the country's food processing and production capacity. 

The agri-food industry depends on sustainable water resources.  

 

3. Rising temperatures: Higher temperatures across the region, as predicted by 

the UK Climate Projections 2009 (UKCP09), will cause major disruption to current 

infrastructure across the region. Greater Lincolnshire has been highlighted as 

having low annual rainfall, and therefore any future temperature rises are likely 

to exacerbate such trends. 

 

Adaptation 
Decarbonisation 

of transport 
Waste 

management 
Local industry 

strategy 

Page 45



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 30 

 

6.4 The low-lying nature of the region will contribute to exacerbating the effects of 

climatic changes. This makes the region susceptible to increasing storm activity and 

associated rising sea levels. Flooding can cause widespread damage to buildings and 

infrastructure across Lincolnshire and it is therefore vital that developments across the 

region are resilient in nature. To improve resilience across the region, the three following 

recommendations should be noted:  

 

1. Integrate mitigation and adaptation climate policies. A lack of coherence 

between the two components of climate action may result not only in shortfall or 

failure to achieve projected policy targets, but can also lead to inefficient use of 

limited resources as co-benefit and synergies go unharnessed. The lack of 

consideration of mitigation in adaptation initiatives could lead to increased 

greenhouse gas emissions, while lack of consideration of adaptation in mitigation 

initiatives could lead to underperformance, due to direct climate hazards, as well 

as increase the vulnerability of communities. 

 

2. Create a risk management process. Adaptation and disaster management 

uses a significant amount of resource and capacity if it is not adequately prepared 

for. By being aware, and preparing for the potential hazards through an iterative 

and learning risk management process, the depth and breadth of impacts can be 

reduced and some disasters can even be prevented. 

 

3. Ensure local and structural development plans are updated with latest 

climate projections. Some of the measures that could build resilience to 

weather and climate-related hazards, such as building codes and zoning 

regulations, may be less effective if they are not regularly updated to incorporate 

the latest climate change projections, as well as other changes including shifts to 

societal structures, demography, environmental degradation, poverty and 

inequality. Policy tools for urban and country planning should incorporate climate 

change mitigation, climate change adaptation and disaster risk management 

considerations and good practice.  
 

6.5 These recommendations will be considered and used to develop an adaptation 

strategy and implementation plan towards enhancing resilience across Lincolnshire.  

 

Decarbonisation of transport 

6.6 The need to decarbonise transport systems across the region is central to 

reducing its carbon emissions. Improving the sustainability of transport vehicles and 

networks will help to ensure smoother transitions towards low-carbon technologies. LCC 

recognises the significant carbon contribution that the transport sector has, and 

decarbonising transport systems must therefore be a priority as transport demands 

continue to rise across the region. Decarbonisation is being considered as part of the 

Lincolnshire Connected work currently being undertaken. Lincolnshire Connected 

focusses on major disruptors: 

 

1. Decarbonisation 

2. Mobility as a Service 

3. Artificial intelligence 

 

Page 46



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 31 

 

29% 

18% 

53% 

Lincolnshire Waste Carbon Footprint 
(Overall) 

Buildings

Transport

Waste Disposal

Waste management 

6.7 LCC also recognises the significant carbon and cost saving opportunities that will 

arise with a feasible waste management plan. Reducing volumes of waste across the 

region will work towards lowering the operating costs (carbon and monetary) associated 

with sorting and disposing of waste items.  

 

6.8 LCC has recently, in conjunction with the seven district Councils, carried out a 

baselining exercise to determine the size of the waste carbon footprint. The footprint 

covers the following elements: 

 

1) Buildings: 

a. Energy from Waste facility. 

b. Seven Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRC). 

c. Five Waste Transfer Sites (WTS). 

 

2) Transport 

a. Seven districts refuse collections 

b. LCC waste transfer haulage from WTS to energy from waste facility 

c. JCB loaders at WTS 

 

3) Waste Disposal: 

a. Waste to landfill 

b. Windrow composting 

c. Energy from waste 

d. Recyclables 

 

6.9 The graph below details the percentage breakdown of Lincolnshire's waste and 

shows that waste disposal is by far the greatest component. The tonnage for all 

elements of Lincolnshire waste is 28,466 tonnes of CO2. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 47



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 32 

 

4% 

22% 

48% 

26% 

Lincolnshire Waste Carbon Footprint 

Waste Disposal (tonnes) 

Lincolnshire waste
to landfill

Windrow
Composting

Energy from
Waste

Recycling & Reuse

58% 

3% 

25% 

14% 

Lincolnshire Waste Carbon Footprint 
Waste Disposal (Tonnes of CO2) 

Lincolnshire waste
to landfill

Windrow
Composting

Energy from
Waste

Recycling & Reuse

6.10 The two graphs below detail the breakdown of Lincolnshire's waste disposal in 

tonnes and tonnes of CO2.  

 

 

 

 

6.11 Information in the two graphs above shows that although waste to landfill only 

accounts for 4% of the total waste in Lincolnshire it makes up 58% of the CO2 tonnage. 

Therefore, efforts should be focused on dealing with emission s from waste to landfill. 

 

6.12 It has been decided that waste will not be included in the Carbon Management 

Plan but will be dealt with by projects separately. However, the baseline will be updated 

annually and reported to the Environment Project Board. 

 

Local Industrial Strategy 

6.13 The Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership (GLLEP) is leading the 

development of a Local Industrial Strategy (LIS) for the county. In the Industrial 

Strategy White Paper, the Government sets out expectations that each area in England 

will produce a LIS and states that it will work in partnership with places to develop them. 

They will be developed locally and agreed with the Government.  

 

6.14 These strategies will help identify priorities to improve skills, increase innovation 

and enhance infrastructure and business growth. This will guide the use of local funding 

streams and any spending from national schemes. 

6.15 The White Paper sketches out a phased approach with the first set of LISs to be 

agreed by March 2019. The GLLEP is currently in the evidence-gathering phase. The 

timetable is as follows: 

 Phase 1 (up to March 2018): Commissioning and reviewing research. 

 Phase 2 (June – September 2018): Developing a first draft LIS, testing and 

developing solutions from June to September 2018. 

 Phase 3 (October – December 2018): Testing and adjusting what will hopefully be 

a near-final draft. 

 Phase 4 (December 2018 – onwards): Reaching agreement for our LIS with 

national Government. 

6.16 In Greater Lincolnshire, stakeholder engagement will continue throughout the 

development period. This includes a series of MP-led round tables to talk to businesses 

about what support they need to develop. 

Page 48



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 33 

 

6.17 The Government’s Industrial Strategy White Paper identified five foundations to 
drive productivity. They are: 

 Place 

 Ideas and Innovation 

 People 

 Business Environment 

 Infrastructure 

 

6.18 The Government is still working through the detail of how the LIS and 

the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) will work together. The SEP remains a central steering 

document for the work of the LEP with a significant programme of work being delivered. 

The LIS will not seek to duplicate this work, but will build upon it. 
   

Page 49

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/664572/industrial-strategy-white-paper-print-ready-version.pdf


 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 34 

 

Appendix 1 

 

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 1 

Committed Salix revolving fund projects  

Owner (person) Steve Golightly 

Department Sustainability Team 

Description The Sustainability Team has been working with schools and corporate 

property over the last 4 years to help them reduce their energy and carbon 

emissions and this has included funding for energy saving measures. 15 LED 

lighting projects have been funded since the baseline of 2016/17.  

Benefits Financial savings: 

  £40,529 

Payback period: 

 7.3 years. 

CO2 Emissions reduction:  

 Annual savings of 163.3 tonnes of CO2.  

% of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 

annually contribute: 

 14.2% 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc: 

 The information is based on LED lighting surveys completed prior to 
the works being commenced. 

Funding Projects are being funded through LCC's Salix energy revolving fund. 

Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Reduced running and maintenance costs. 

Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

 LCC's Salix energy revolving fund. 

How /when decision on funding will be made 

 Projects have already been approved for funding. 
 

Resources  The project can be delivered using current resources. 

Page 50



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 35 

 

 

  

Ensuring 

Success 

Key success factors: 

 Delivery mechanisms already in place. 

Principal risks:   

 None. 

Measuring 

Success 

Consumption changes analysed by means of AMR or billing data.   

Timing Milestones / key dates e.g. 

 start date:  01/04/17 

 completion date: 01/04/18 

Notes  

Page 51



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 36 

 

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 2 

R&M Re-roof 

Owner (person) Andy Fenn 

Department Corporate Property 

Description Annual programme of upgrading thermal elements (Windows, Roofs etc) in 

LCC's portfolio based on condition rating. 

Benefits Financial savings: 

  £3,200 

Payback period: 

 222 years (this is high due to the high cost of removing and replacing 

the roof). 

CO2 Emissions reduction:  

 Annual savings of 35.7 tonnes of CO2.  

% of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 

annually contribute: 

 3.1% 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc: 

 The information is based on the number of thermal elements that 

were upgraded on the 2017 / 2018 programme. 

Funding Existing project, funding already in place for the R&M Programme. 

Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Reduced running costs (Not contributing to funding): 

Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

 Internal (Through R&M funding). 

How /when decision on funding will be made 

 Decision making progress and governance already established with 

Corporate Property (Annual, based on Condition Survey information). 

 

Resources  The project can be delivered using current resources. 

Ensuring 

Success 

Key success factors: 

 Delivery mechanisms already in place however need to incorporate 

Carbon Assessment into the Business Case process. 

Principal risks:   

 Depends on the number of sites identified each year and their 

successfully disposal. 

Measuring 

Success 

Consumption changes analysed by means of AMR or billing data.  Measured & 

evaluated annually (at the end of the heating season). Only measured and 

evaluated when a significant area of the building is being upgraded (50%+). 

Page 52



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 37 

 

 

  

Timing Milestones / key dates e.g. 

 start date:  01/04/18 
 completion date (when it will deliver savings):   Annual over life of 

CMP (end of March each year) 

Notes Assumes a 20% improvement in efficiency, hence 20% energy saving. 

 

Costs based on gas price of 1.65 p/kWh. 

Page 53



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 38 

 

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 3 

R&M Boiler Replacement Programme 

Owner (person) Andy Fenn 

Department Corporate Property 

Description Annual programme of replacing boilers in LCC's portfolio based on condition 

rating. 

Benefits Financial savings: 

  £15,500 annually. 

Payback period: 

 11 years. 

CO2 Emissions reduction:  

 Annual savings of 173 tonnes of CO2.  

% of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 

annually contribute: 

 15.1% 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc: 

 The information is based on the number of boilers that were 

upgraded on the 2017 / 2018 programme. 

Funding Existing project, funding already in place for the R&M Programme. 

Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Reduced running &  maintenance  costs (Not contributing to funding): 

Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

 Internal (Through R&M programme). 

How /when decision on funding will be made 

 Decision making progress and governance already established with 

Corporate Property (Annual, based on Condition Survey information). 

 

Resources No Additional resource (e.g. people) requirements for delivery as existing 

programme, the project can be delivered using current resources. 

Ensuring 

Success 

Key success factors: 

 Delivery mechanisms already in place. 

Principal risks:   

 Depends on the number of boiler changes identified each year. 

Measuring 

Success 

Consumption changes analysed by means of AMR or billing data. 

Measured & evaluated annually (at the end of the heating season)..  

Timing Milestones / key dates e.g. 

 start date:  01/04/18 
 completion date (when it will deliver savings):   Annual over life of 

CMP (end of March each year) 

Page 54



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 39 

 

 

  

Notes Assumes a 20% improvement in efficiency, hence 20% energy saving. 

 

Costs based on gas price of 1.65 p/kWh. 

Page 55



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 40 

 

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 4 

R&M BMS 

Owner (person) Andy Fenn 

Department Corporate Property 

Description Annual programme of upgrading heating controllers (BMS) in LCC's portfolio 

based on condition rating.. 

Benefits Financial savings: 

  £1,000 

Payback period: 

 15 years. 

CO2 Emissions reduction:  

 Annual savings of 10.2 tonnes of CO2.  

% of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 

annually contribute: 

 0.9% 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc: 

 The information is based on the number of building management 

systems that were upgraded on the 2017 / 2018 programme. 

Funding Existing project, funding already in place for the R&M programme. 

Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Reduced running costs (Not contributing to funding): 

Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

 Internal (Through R&M funding). 

How /when decision on funding will be made 

 Decision making progress and governance already established with 

Corporate Property (Annual, based on Condition Survey information). 

 

Resources  No Additional resource (e.g. people) requirements for delivery as 

existing programme.  Project will be delivered using current resource. 

Ensuring 

Success 

Key success factors: 

 Delivery mechanisms already in place. 

Principal risks:   

 Depends on the number boiler changes identified each year.. 

Measuring 

Success 

 Consumption changes analysed by means of AMR or billing data.  Measured 

& evaluated annually (at the end of the heating season).  

Page 56



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 41 

 

 

  

Timing Milestones / key dates e.g. 

 start date:  01/04/18 

 completion date (when it will deliver savings):   Annual over life of 

CMP (end of March each year) 

Notes Assumes a 20% improvement in efficiency, hence 20% energy saving. 

 

Costs based on gas price of 1.65 p/kWh. 

Page 57



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 42 

 

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 5 

PV - Buildings 

Owner (person) Dave Pennington 

Department Corporate Property 

Description As part of the project work undertaken by LCC (New Builds, Extensions & 

Refurbishments) there is the possibility of including photovoltaic arrays on 

the appropriate projects. 

Benefits Financial savings: 

  £3,320 

Payback period: 

 9 years. 

CO2 Emissions reduction:  

 Annual savings of 7.6 tonnes of CO2.  

% of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 

annually contribute: 

 0.7% 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc: 

 Based on 2, 10kWp PV arrays being installed and generating 9,200 

kWh each. 

Funding Project cost - funding from Capital Programme.. 

Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Annual maintenance for each establishment to pay (CP Operations 

Team are looking into a Service Contract due to F&R coming under 

Corporate Landlord). 

Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

 Internal (Capital Programme). 

How /when decision on funding will be made 

 Funding already in place (Incorporate Carbon Assessment in Business 

Case). 

 

Resources  Additional resource (e.g. people) requirements for delivery - No 

additional resource as already forms part of the Capital Programme. 

Ensuring 

Success 

Key success factors: 

 Early Identification of the schemes is developed each year, then 

budget to be allocated for renewables as part of each project to 

inform the Carbon Assessment. 

Principal risks:   

 Technical, financial, etc (e.g. what happens if the project is 

insufficiently resourced?). Potential to use the funding for renewables 

Page 58



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 43 

 

 

  

to target other areas to make the buildings more efficient, improved 

insulation, upgrade heating plant, etc. Also a financial risk due to 

budgetary pressures.  

Measuring 

Success 

Generation consumption following successful installations compared to MCS 

predicted consumption. 

 

Timings when success will be measured / evaluated - to tie in with the FiT 

applications and subsequent metering readings requirements to claim the FiT 

payments 

Timing Milestones / key dates e.g.  

 start date:  01/04/18 

 Completion date (when it will deliver savings): Each year of CMPIII. 

Notes  

Page 59



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 44 

 

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 6 

Fenland Green Solar Power PV 

Owner (person) Andy Fenn 

Department Corporate Property 

Description LCC have been approached by Fenland Green Power Cooperative as they 

have £75,000 which has been offered as a community fund and they are 

proposing on putting a PV array in four local schools in the Market Deeping 

Area. 

Benefits Financial savings: 

  £6,440 

Payback period: 

 Not Applicable – external funding 

CO2 Emissions reduction:  

 Annual savings of 15.2 tonnes of CO2.  

% of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 

annually contribute: 

 1.3% 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc: 

 Based on 4 10kWp PV arrays being installed and generating 9,200 

kWh each. 

Funding Project cost via Fenland Green Power Cooperative. 

Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Annual maintenance for each school to pay. 

Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

 External. 

How /when decision on funding will be made 

 Funding already in place. 

 

Resources  Additional resource (e.g. people) requirements for delivery - 

Corporate Property, Procurement Lincolnshire, Legal Services, 

Diocese, VINCI. 

Ensuring 

Success 

Key success factors: 

 Keep Fenland Green Power onside, needs to tie in with R&M roof 

replacement programme and legal services will need to be engaged 

to draft contract for LCC and Diocese. 

Principal risks:   

 None. 

Measuring 

Success 

Generation consumption following successful installations compared to MCS 

predicted consumption.  

Page 60



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 45 

 

 

  

 

Timings when success will be measured / evaluated - to tie in with the FiT 

applications and subsequent metering readings requirements to claim the FiT 

payments  

Timing Milestones / key dates e.g. 

 start date:  01/04/18 already underway 

 Completion date (when it will deliver savings):   31/03/2019 (Funding 

window closes). 

Notes  

Page 61



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 46 

 

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 7 

LED Lighting 

Owner 

(person) 

Andy Fenn 

Department Corporate Property 

Description LED Lighting installations in those properties identified via the Display Energy 

Certificate Programme. 

Benefits Financial savings: 

  £30,500 

Payback period: 

 7 years. 

CO2 Emissions reduction:  

 Annual savings of 109 tonnes of CO2.  

% of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 

annually contribute: 

 9.5% 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of thumb, 

costed by suppliers etc: 

 Based on the 33 sites with poor lighting identified via the DEC 

Surveys. 

Funding Project Costs:  

 Based on the 33 sites with poor lighting identified via the DEC 

Surveys. 

Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Reduced running costs. 

Source of funding:  internal via business case. 

 Internal (Through R&M funding). 

How /when decision on funding will be made 

 Quarterly at Corporate Property CMP Board Meeting. 

 

Resources  Resource will come from Corporate Property (Operations) and VINCI / 

Kier via the OPS element of the contract. 

Ensuring 

Success 

Key success factors: 

 Establish a robust method via the Corporate Property CMP Board meeting to 

assess and prioritise the identified works. 

Principal risks:   

 Establish a robust method via the Corporate Property CMP Board meeting to 

assess and prioritise the identified works. 

Page 62



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 47 

 

 

  

Measuring 

Success 

Consumption changes analysed by means of AMR or billing data and 

measured & evaluated annually 

Timing Milestones / key dates e.g. 

 start date:  01/04/18 

 completion date (when it will deliver savings):   Annual over life of 

CMP (end of March each year) 

Notes Assumes a 20% saving in site electricity. 

 

Costs based on gas price of 12 p/kWh. 

Page 63



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 48 

 

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 8 

Building Rationalisation 

Owner (person) Katie Gosling 

Department Corporate Property 

Description As part of LCC's Corporate Asset Management Plan the property portfolio is 

reviewed continually and those properties no longer required are declared 

surplus and are subsequently sold. 

Benefits Financial savings: 

 £16,000. 

Payback period:  

 Not Applicable. 

CO2 Emissions reduction:  

 Annual savings of 168 tonnes of CO2.  

% of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 

annually contribute: 

 Potentially this will deliver 14.6% of our savings target. 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc: 

 Based on the average reduction in consumption from the 2017 - 2018 

& 2018 - 2019 Disposal Programmes.  

 

Funding The total project cost: 

 Existing project, funding already in place in Corporate Property & 

VINCI. 

Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Reduced running costs (Not contributing to funding):. 

Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

1. Internal (Through R&M funding). 

How /when decision on funding will be made 

 No additional resource (e.g. people) requirements for delivery as 

existing programme. Project will be delivered using current resource. 

Resources The project can be delivered using current resources. 

Ensuring 

Success 

Key success factors 

 Delivery mechanisms already in place however need to incorporate 

Carbon Assessment into the Business Case process. 

Principal risks: 

 Depends on the number of sites identified each year and their 

successfully disposal. 

Measuring 

Success 

Consumption assessment once the properties no longer belong to LCC.  

Measured & evaluated once notification has been received from the Valuation 

Page 64



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 49 

 

 

  

Team that the property has left LCC's portfolios.  

Timing Milestones / key dates e.g. 

 Start date:  01/04/18 

 Completion date:  Annual over life of CMP (end of March each year) 

Notes  

Page 65



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 50 

 

  

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 9 

Water Usage 

Owner (person) Kevin Kendall 

Department Corporate Property 

Description Look at a project to reduce water consumption within its properties including 

use within toilets and rainwater harvesting utilised in new or significantly 

refurbished properties. 

Benefits  Financial savings: £ [x] 

 Payback period: [x] years 

 CO2 Emissions reduction: [x] tonnes of CO2  

 % of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 

annually contribute 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc. 

Funding  Project cost, e.g. the initial cost of implementing the project 

 Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

 How /when decision on funding will be made 

Resources  The project can be delivered using current resources. 

Ensuring 

Success 
 Key success factors, or things that will need to happen for this project to 

succeed 

 Principal risks:  technical, financial, etc (e.g. what happens if the project 
is insufficiently resourced?). 

Measuring 

Success 
 Team Sigma will be used to verify water savings by comparing water 

consumption pre and post implementation of water saving measures. 

Timing  Milestones / key dates e.g. 

o start date:  dd/mm/yyyy 

o completion date (when it will deliver savings):  dd/mm/yyyy 

o interim deliverable / decision points 

    You could also lay these out as a milestone chart for clarity 

Break the timescale down into a handful of milestone points so progress can 

be measured 

Notes Calculations will be required to be made in consultation with the Corporate 

Property Team and the Sustainability team. 

Page 66



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 51 

 

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 10 

Replacement of Sodium Street Lighting to LED 

Owner (person) Patrick Cant 

Department Street Lighting 

Description Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) currently has 66,610 street lamps covering 

Class A, B and minor roads, broken down as follows: 

 21,600 street lights that have been replaced with LED lamps in a £3.6 
Million project delivered over an 18 month period using LCC capital. 

 20,000 non SOX sodium lamps not proposed to be replaced at 
present due to technical difficulties in replacing with LED lamps. 

This project will replace 25,010 SOX sodium street lights with LED lamps over 

a 6 year period using a combination of LCC's Salix fund and Salix SEELS. 

Benefits Financial savings: 

 Year 1 annual savings of £63,654 and 189 tonnes of carbon. 

 Year 2 annual savings of £64,204 and 189 tonnes of carbon. 
 Year 3 annual savings of £66,497 and 189 tonnes of carbon. 
 Year 4 annual savings of £68,790 and 189 tonnes of carbon. 
 Year 5 annual savings of £71,083 and 189 tonnes of carbon. 
 Year 6 annual savings of £73,376 and 189 tonnes of carbon. 
 Total annual saving at end of project of £407,605 and 1,134 tonnes 

of carbon. 

Payback period:  

 56.6 years 

CO2 Emissions reduction: 

 Year 1 annual savings of 189 tonnes of carbon. 
 Year 2 annual savings of 189 tonnes of carbon. 
 Year 3 annual savings of 189 tonnes of carbon. 
 Year 4 annual savings of 189 tonnes of carbon. 

 Year 5 annual savings of 189 tonnes of carbon. 
 Year 6 annual savings of 189 tonnes of carbon. 
 Total annual saving at end of project of 1,134 tonnes of carbon. 

% of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 

annually contribute: 

 Potentially this will deliver 16.5.3% of our savings target. 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc: 

 Street Lighting completes a "Confirm Report" monthly which includes 

an ELEXON Code for each item in their inventory.  

 

 The ELEXON Code will be changed to identify that the street lighting 

has been replaced with LED. This will be done for the 25010 street 

Page 67



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 52 

 

 

lighting lamps monthly over the 6 year period. 

 

 The "Confirm" monthly report is then sent to Western Power 

Distribution to validate and it is then forwarded to Total Gas & P, who 

provide our gas and electricity, which will reduce the electricity 

charges.  

 

The energy savings will then be seen from the next month. 

Funding The total project costs are £3,055,472 split over six years as follows: 

 Year 1 project cost of £509,245. 
 Year 2 project cost of £509,245. 

 Year 3 project cost of £509,245. 
 Year 4 project cost of £509,245. 

 Year 5 project cost of £509,245. 
 Year 6 project cost of £509,247. 

Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 There will be a significant reduction in running costs as well as a 

reduction in maintenance costs due to the longer life of LED lamps. 

Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

 Funding is split as follows: 

2. LCC's revolving Salix funding £1,315,000. 
3. Salix SEELS funding £1,140,470. 

4. Capital contribution for street lighting of £600,000. 

How /when decision on funding will be made 

 Street lighting capital contribution and LCC's Salix confirmed and 
awaiting a decision on Salix SEELS. 

Resources The project can be delivered using current resources. 

Ensuring 

Success 

Key success factors 

 Reduction in unmetered supply bills based on Elexon process 

Measuring 

Success 

 Reduction in energy consumption and costs as shown on monthly 
inventory 

Timing  Milestones / key dates e.g. 

o 01/05/2018 

o completion date: 31/03/2024 

Notes Quantification reflects Salix Compliance Tool. Details can be traced through 

Steve Golightly. 

Page 68



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 53 

 

 

  

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 11 

EV Charging via Street lighting Columns 

Owner (person) Patrick Cant 

Department Street Lighting 

Description Project to look at the feasibility of using use street lighting columns as 

Electric Vehicle charging points. 

Benefits  Financial savings: £ [x] 

 Payback period: [x] years 

 CO2 Emissions reduction: [x] tonnes of CO2  

 % of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 
annually contribute 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc. 

Funding  Project cost, e.g. the initial cost of implementing the project 

 Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

 How /when decision on funding will be made 

Resources  The project can be delivered using current resources. 

Ensuring 

Success 
 Key success factors, or things that will need to happen for this project to 

succeed 

 Principal risks:  technical, financial, etc (e.g. what happens if the project 

is insufficiently resourced?). 

Measuring 

Success 
 Numbers of columns installed year on year can be used to gauge the 

success of the project. 

Timing  Milestones / key dates e.g. 

o start date:  dd/mm/yyyy 

o completion date (when it will deliver savings):  dd/mm/yyyy 

o interim deliverable / decision points 

    You could also lay these out as a milestone chart for clarity 

Break the timescale down into a handful of milestone points so progress can 

be measured 

Notes Include a note of the assumptions made in estimating the costs and benefits 

(e.g. quantification) or a reference to where the more detailed calculation 

can be found.  This will ensure an audit trail. 

Page 69



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 54 

 

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 12 

Reduction of Transport Emissions 

Owner (person) Steve Roberts 

Department Transport 

Description A project to reduce of emissions from transport by incorporating the 

following: 

 Encourage a greater use of lift share car park spaces. 

 Ensure staff use the most sustainable and cost effective method travel. 

 Review the provision of vehicles provided on the car lease scheme by 

reducing the present 120g CO2/km figure and provide more choice of 

low emissions vehicles and electric cars. 

 Encourage a greater use of pool cars to cut down business miles whilst 

allowing LCC to choose the type of vehicles. 

 Increase the provision of Electric charging points within LCC properties 

thereby encouraging staff to use electric/hybrid vehicles more. 

 Look at bringing back a driver training course that will encourage staff to 

drive more environmentally friendly and safely. 

 Encourage a greater us of pool bikes as well as mapping out there 

locations within LCC offices where pool bikes are located. 

Benefits  Financial savings: £ [x] 

 Payback period: [x] years 

 CO2 Emissions reduction: [x] tonnes of CO2  

 % of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 

annually contribute 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc. 

Funding  Project cost, e.g. the initial cost of implementing the project 

 Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

 How /when decision on funding will be made 

Resources  The project can be delivered using current resources. 

Ensuring 

Success 

 Key success factors, or things that will need to happen for this project to 

succeed 

 Principal risks:  technical, financial, etc (e.g. what happens if the project 

is insufficiently resourced?). 

Measuring 

Success 

 The measures above should be able to be identified in a reduced amount 

of Business miles claimed by LCC staff. 

Timing  Milestones / key dates e.g. 

o start date:  dd/mm/yyyy 

o completion date (when it will deliver savings):  dd/mm/yyyy 

o interim deliverable / decision points 

    You could also lay these out as a milestone chart for clarity 

Break the timescale down into a handful of milestone points so progress can 

be measured 

Page 70



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 55 

 

 

  

Notes Include a note of the assumptions made in estimating the costs and benefits 

(e.g. quantification) or a reference to where the more detailed calculation 

can be found.  This will ensure an audit trail. 

Page 71



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 56 

 

 

  

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 13 

IT Upgrades 

Owner (person) John Wickens 

Department IT 

Description Project to look at updating the present video conferencing system to allow a 

more user friendly experience. Upgrade IT equipment to take advantage of 

newer technology that would reduce the need for printing.  

Benefits  Financial savings: £ [x] 

 Payback period: [x] years 

 CO2 Emissions reduction: [x] tonnes of CO2  

 % of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 

annually contribute 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc. 

Funding  Project cost, e.g. the initial cost of implementing the project 

 Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

 How /when decision on funding will be made 

Resources  The project can be delivered using current resources. 

Ensuring 

Success 

 Key success factors, or things that will need to happen for this project to 

succeed 

 Principal risks:  technical, financial, etc (e.g. what happens if the project 

is insufficiently resourced?). 

Measuring 

Success 

 Metrics for measuring success would include a reduction in business 

miles and reduced paper use. 

 However, it may be difficult to separate out reductions in both these 

metrics from other initiatives. 

Timing  Milestones / key dates e.g. 

o start date:  dd/mm/yyyy 

o completion date (when it will deliver savings):  dd/mm/yyyy 

o interim deliverable / decision points 

    You could also lay these out as a milestone chart for clarity 

Break the timescale down into a handful of milestone points so progress can 

be measured 

Notes Include a note of the assumptions made in estimating the costs and benefits 

(e.g. quantification) or a reference to where the more detailed calculation 

can be found.  This will ensure an audit trail. 

Page 72



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 57 

 

 

  

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 14 

Server & Data Rationalisation 

Owner (person) John Wickens 

Department IT 

Description LCC has abnormally high data storage for a County Council of 150TB which is 

affecting system performance. Also at present there are some elements still 

hosted on servers within LCC and are likely to be for some time. Look at a 

project to rationalisation of these servers could help reduce the present 

£15K-£18K annual running costs.  

Benefits  Financial savings: £ [x] 

 Payback period: [x] years 

 CO2 Emissions reduction: [x] tonnes of CO2  

 % of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 

annually contribute 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc. 

Funding  Project cost, e.g. the initial cost of implementing the project 

 Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

 How /when decision on funding will be made 

Resources  The project can be delivered using current resources. 

Ensuring 

Success 

 Key success factors, or things that will need to happen for this project to 

succeed 

 Principal risks:  technical, financial, etc (e.g. what happens if the project 

is insufficiently resourced?). 

Measuring 

Success 

 Team Sigma will be used to verify energy savings by comparing energy 

consumption pre and post implementation of energy saving measures. 

Timing  Milestones / key dates e.g. 

o start date:  dd/mm/yyyy 

o completion date (when it will deliver savings):  dd/mm/yyyy 

o interim deliverable / decision points 

    You could also lay these out as a milestone chart for clarity 

Break the timescale down into a handful of milestone points so progress can 

be measured 

Notes Include a note of the assumptions made in estimating the costs and benefits 

(e.g. quantification) or a reference to where the more detailed calculation 

can be found.  This will ensure an audit trail. 

Page 73



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 58 

 

 

  

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 15 

Fire & Rescue Vehicle Telematics 

Owner (person) Dave Hopkins 

Department Fire & Rescue 

Description Project to look at using telematics to monitor vehicles by combining a 

GPS system with on-board diagnostics and record – and map – exactly where 

a car is and how fast it's traveling, and cross reference that with how a car is 

behaving internally. This information can help in making decisions on the 

number of vehicles and types required and if the best use of them is being 

made. 

Benefits  Financial savings: £ [x] 

 Payback period: [x] years 

 A CO2 Emissions reduction: [x] tonnes of CO2  

 % of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 

annually contribute 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc. 

Funding  Project cost, e.g. the initial cost of implementing the project 

 Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

 How /when decision on funding will be made 

Resources  Additional resource (e.g. people) requirements for delivery and where 

they will come from 

 If this project will be delivered using current resources, say so 

Ensuring 

Success 

 Key success factors, or things that will need to happen for this project to 

succeed 

 Principal risks:  technical, financial, etc (e.g. what happens if the project 

is insufficiently resourced?). 

Measuring 

Success 

 Business mileage usage pre and post implementation of measures can 

be used to determine the reduction and, therefore, success of the 

project. 

Timing  Milestones / key dates e.g. 

o start date:  dd/mm/yyyy 

o completion date (when it will deliver savings):  dd/mm/yyyy 

o interim deliverable / decision points 

    You could also lay these out as a milestone chart for clarity 

Break the timescale down into a handful of milestone points so progress can 

be measured 

Notes Include a note of the assumptions made in estimating the costs and benefits 

(e.g. quantification) or a reference to where the more detailed calculation 

can be found.  This will ensure an audit trail. 

Page 74



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 59 

 

 

  

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 16 

Internal and External Communications 

Owner (person) Tim Smith 

Department Comms 

Description Project to communicate to staff and the public messages about environmental 

matters including carbon savings. The idea would be to encourage the buy in 

from staff as well as encouraging the public to save energy and understand 

what the council is doing. 

Benefits  Financial savings: £ [x] 

 Payback period: [x] years 

 CO2 Emissions reduction: [x] tonnes of CO2  

 % of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 
annually contribute 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc. 

Funding  Project cost, e.g. the initial cost of implementing the project 

 Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

 How /when decision on funding will be made 

Resources  The project can be delivered using current resources. 

Ensuring 

Success 
 Key success factors, or things that will need to happen for this project to 

succeed 

 Principal risks:  technical, financial, etc (e.g. what happens if the project 
is insufficiently resourced?). 

Measuring 

Success 
 Team Sigma will be used to verify energy savings by comparing energy 

consumption pre and post implementation of internal and external 
comms messages.  

Timing  Milestones / key dates e.g. 

o start date:  dd/mm/yyyy 

o completion date (when it will deliver savings):  dd/mm/yyyy 

o interim deliverable / decision points 

    You could also lay these out as a milestone chart for clarity 

Break the timescale down into a handful of milestone points so progress can 

be measured 

Notes Include a note of the assumptions made in estimating the costs and benefits 

(e.g. quantification) or a reference to where the more detailed calculation 

can be found.  This will ensure an audit trail. 

Page 75



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 60 

 

 

  

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 17 

School visit Co-ordination 

Owner (person) Shaun Brown 

Department Children's Services 

Description At present there are various agencies that visit schools and there is no co-

ordination on what is able to be offered. As Children's Services teams 

regularly visit schools they are in a position to make schools aware of energy 

saving offers from the Sustainability Team or Corporate Property. They are 

also in a position to see if there is anything that appears to be happening at 

multiple sites that could be addressed through a dedicated project.  

Benefits  Financial savings: £ [x] 

 Payback period: [x] years 

 CO2 Emissions reduction: [x] tonnes of CO2  

 % of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 
annually contribute 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc. 

Funding  Project cost, e.g. the initial cost of implementing the project 

 Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

 How /when decision on funding will be made 

Resources  The project can be delivered using current resources. 

Ensuring 

Success 
 Key success factors, or things that will need to happen for this project to 

succeed 

 Principal risks:  technical, financial, etc (e.g. what happens if the project 
is insufficiently resourced?). 

Measuring 

Success 
 Team Sigma will be used to verify energy savings by comparing energy 

consumption pre and post implementation of energy saving measures.  

Timing  Milestones / key dates e.g. 

o start date:  dd/mm/yyyy 

o completion date (when it will deliver savings):  dd/mm/yyyy 

o interim deliverable / decision points 

    You could also lay these out as a milestone chart for clarity 

Break the timescale down into a handful of milestone points so progress can 

be measured 

Notes Calculations will be required to be made in consultation with the Corporate 

Property Team and the Sustainability team. 

Page 76



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 61 

 

 

  

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 18 

Carbon/Environmental Impact Assessment  

Owner (person) George Spiteri/Andy Gutherson 

Department Programme Management (Value for Money) 

Description At present projects do not complete a Carbon/Environmental Impact 

Assessment and, therefore, opportunities for carbon savings to be discussed 

within projects are being missed. If an impact assessment is made on each 

project with input from the Sustainability Team opportunities for 

carbon/energy savings will be not only be considered but considered at the 

correct time.  

Benefits  Financial savings: £ [x] 

 Payback period: [x] years 

 CO2 Emissions reduction: [x] tonnes of CO2  

 % of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 

annually contribute 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc. 

Funding  Project cost, e.g. the initial cost of implementing the project 

 Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

 How /when decision on funding will be made 

Resources  The project can be delivered using current resources. 

Ensuring 

Success 

 Key success factors, or things that will need to happen for this project to 

succeed 

 Principal risks:  technical, financial, etc (e.g. what happens if the project 

is insufficiently resourced?). 

Measuring 

Success 

 Metrics for displaying performance or achievement 

 Timings when success will be measured / evaluated 

Timing  Milestones / key dates e.g. 

o start date:  dd/mm/yyyy 

o completion date (when it will deliver savings):  dd/mm/yyyy 

o interim deliverable / decision points 

    You could also lay these out as a milestone chart for clarity 

Break the timescale down into a handful of milestone points so progress can 

be measured 

Notes Include a note of the assumptions made in estimating the costs and benefits 

(e.g. quantification) or a reference to where the more detailed calculation 

can be found.  This will ensure an audit trail. 

Page 77



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 62 

 

 

  

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 19 

Procurement of Goods And Services  

Owner (person) Fiona Fielding 

Department Procurement 

Description At present 'whole life costs' are not taken into account on goods purchased 

by LCC. Also environmental and energy impacts are also not always factored 

into purchases. Also LCC should consider encourage companies to meet the 

environmental standards that LCC work to. 

Benefits  Financial savings: £ [x] 

 Payback period: [x] years 

 CO2 Emissions reduction: [x] tonnes of CO2  

 % of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 
annually contribute 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc. 

Funding  Project cost, e.g. the initial cost of implementing the project 

 Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

 How /when decision on funding will be made 

Resources  The project can be delivered using current resources. 

Ensuring 

Success 
 Key success factors, or things that will need to happen for this project to 

succeed 

 Principal risks:  technical, financial, etc (e.g. what happens if the project 
is insufficiently resourced?). 

Measuring 

Success 
 Metrics for displaying performance or achievement 

 Timings when success will be measured / evaluated 

Timing  Milestones / key dates e.g. 

o start date:  dd/mm/yyyy 

o completion date (when it will deliver savings):  dd/mm/yyyy 

o interim deliverable / decision points 

    You could also lay these out as a milestone chart for clarity 

Break the timescale down into a handful of milestone points so progress can 

be measured 

Notes Include a note of the assumptions made in estimating the costs and benefits 

(e.g. quantification) or a reference to where the more detailed calculation 

can be found.  This will ensure an audit trail. 

Page 78



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 63 

 

 

  

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 20 

Go Paperless  

Owner (person) Kevin Kendall 

Department Corporate Property 

Description Look at a project to see about the feasibility of moving towards 100% 

paperless or considerably reducing the amount of paper presently used by 

LCC. 

Benefits  Financial savings: £ [x] 

 Payback period: [x] years 

 CO2 Emissions reduction: [x] tonnes of CO2  

 % of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 

annually contribute 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc. 

Funding  Project cost, e.g. the initial cost of implementing the project 

 Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

 How /when decision on funding will be made 

Resources  The project can be delivered using current resources. 

Ensuring 

Success 

 Key success factors, or things that will need to happen for this project to 

succeed 

 Principal risks:  technical, financial, etc (e.g. what happens if the project 

is insufficiently resourced?). 

Measuring 

Success 

 A baseline for present paper consumption needs to be determined by 

establishing the reams of paper used each month in a year. 

 This can then be compared with data collected post reduction measures 

have taken place. 

Timing  Milestones / key dates e.g. 

o start date:  dd/mm/yyyy 

o completion date (when it will deliver savings):  dd/mm/yyyy 

o interim deliverable / decision points 

    You could also lay these out as a milestone chart for clarity 

Break the timescale down into a handful of milestone points so progress can 

be measured 

Notes Include a note of the assumptions made in estimating the costs and benefits 

(e.g. quantification) or a reference to where the more detailed calculation 

can be found.  This will ensure an audit trail. 

Page 79



 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 64 

 

 

  

Project:  

Reference: 

Project 21 

Carbon Champions 

Owner (person) Cathryn Coates 

Department Business Support 

Description Use business support colleagues as Carbon Champions as they are embedded 

into all areas of LCC and at all locations within the County.  

Benefits  Financial savings: £ [x] 

 Payback period: [x] years 

 CO2 Emissions reduction: [x] tonnes of CO2  

 % of target – the percentage of your CO2  saving target will this project 
annually contribute 

Give an idea of how confident these estimates are, e.g. using rules of 

thumb, costed by suppliers etc. 

Funding  Project cost, e.g. the initial cost of implementing the project 

 Operational costs, e.g. annual maintenance or running costs 

 Source of funding:  internal, external, investment criteria to be met etc. 

 How /when decision on funding will be made 

Resources  The project can be delivered using current resources. 

Ensuring 

Success 
 Key success factors, or things that will need to happen for this project to 

succeed 

 Principal risks:  technical, financial, etc (e.g. what happens if the project 
is insufficiently resourced?). 

Measuring 

Success 
 Team Sigma will be used to verify energy savings by comparing energy 

consumption pre and post implementation of energy saving measures. 

Timing  Milestones / key dates e.g. 

o start date:  dd/mm/yyyy 

o completion date (when it will deliver savings):  dd/mm/yyyy 

o interim deliverable / decision points 

    You could also lay these out as a milestone chart for clarity 

Break the timescale down into a handful of milestone points so progress can 

be measured 

Notes Calculations will be required to be made in consultation with the Corporate 

Property Team and the Sustainability team. 

Page 80



Appendix 2 

 

Data Name e-mail Phone Job Title Location Description 

Accommodation 
(Buildings) 

Nathaniel Dyas Nathaniel.Dyas@kier.co.uk 

 

01522 836279 Lead Energy Engineer 

 

2
nd

 Floor 

County Offices Newland 

Lincoln 

LN1 1YL 

 

Information includes electricity, gas and oil 
data for LCC buildings. Buildings covered 
include Offices, Children's Centres, Economic 
regeneration, Fire & Rescue, Highways and 
Planning, Museums, maintained Schools, 
Social services, Waste Services, Youth 
Centres.  

Accommodation 

(Serco) 

Wendy Lester Wendy.Lester@bankslong.com 

 

01522 518956 Office Administrator  

 

Banks Long & Co 

15 St Mary’s Street 
Lincoln 

LN5 7EQ 

 

Electricity use at Thomas Parker House. 

2 other contacts are: 

Emma Surphlis 

Emma.Surphlis@bankslong.com 

Bob Swainson 

Bob.Swainson@bankslong.com 

LCC Lease 

(Mileage) 

Penelope 
Chadwick  

Penelope.Chadwick@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

01522 555397 Performance and 
Contract Care 
Team                             
                           

Thomas Parker House 

13/14 Silver Street 

LINCOLN 

LN2 1DY 

Information covers lease mileage used by LCC 
employees using the Lease car scheme.  

Fire & Rescue 

(Mileage) 

Julia Skinner  
Julia.Skinner@lincoln.fire-uk.org 

 

01522 580314 

07787 704267 

Contracts Manager 

Lincolnshire Fire and 
Rescue 

South Park Avenue 

Lincoln  

LN5 8EL  

Information covers Lincolnshire Fire & Rescue 
vehicle mileages. This includes Fleet & Lease 
miles. 

LCC Business 

(Mileage) 

Mark Stubbs Mark.Stubbs@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

01522 555555 People Management 

HR Systems Analyst 

 

Serco Local & Regional 

Government 

Thomas Parker House, 

13/14 Silver Street 

Lincoln 

LN2 1DY 

Information covers business miles for all 
directorates and councillors. 

Lincs Lab  

(Mieage) 

James Corringan  James.Corringan@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

01522 550463 

 

Quality and Safety 
Systems Manager 

St. Georges Lane 

Riseholme 

Lincoln  
LN2 2LQ 

Information covers mileage from their 
vehicles. 

P
age 81

mailto:Nathaniel.Dyas@kier.co.uk
mailto:Wendy.Lester@bankslong.com
mailto:Emma.Surphlis@bankslong.com
mailto:Bob.Swainson@bankslong.com
mailto:Penelope.Chadwick@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:Julia.Skinner@lincoln.fire-uk.org
mailto:Mark.Stubbs@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:James.Corringan@lincolnshire.gov.uk


 LCC Carbon Management Plan  

Page | 66 

 

Data Name e-mail Phone Job Title Location Description 

Waste Contract  

(Mileage) 

Andy McGinn Andy.McGinn@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

01522 552867 

07795 441090 

 

HWRCs/WTSs 
Operations Officer 

Energy from Waste 
Facility 

North Hykenham 

Covers the mileage used in transporting bulk 
waste from LCC's Waste Transfer Site to the 
Energy from Waste Facility. 

Kier - Highways 

(Mileage) 

James Geraghty James.Geraghty@kier.co.uk 

 

01256 979967 
07824 474217 

Sustainability Advisor 

 

Kier Services Highways 
Bridgwater House 

Jays Close 

Basingstoke Hampshire 

RG22 4BS 

Information covers fuel use in delivering LCC 
highways contract, fuel use from business 
travel, and fuel use at 3 sites. 

LCC Libraries 

(Mileage) 

  01522 503476    

LCC Rental 

(Mileage) 

Luke Jones luke.jones@lincolnshire.gov.uk 01522 554822 Business Support  Lancaster House 

36 Orchard Street 
Lincoln 
LN1 1XX 

Covers fuel use from LCC car hire. At present 
the contract is with Enterprise rent-a-car. 

Outsourced services 
(Kier) 

James Geraghty James.Geraghty@kier.co.uk 

 

01256 979967 

07824 474217 

Sustainability Advisor 

 

Bridgwater House 

Jays Close 

Basingstoke Hampshire 

RG22 4BS 

Covers fuel usage used by Kier to deliver the 
LCC highways contract. 

Winter Maintenance  

(Mileage) 

James Geraghty James.Geraghty@kier.co.uk 

 

01256 979967 
07824 474217 

Sustainability Advisor 

 

Kier Services Highways 
Bridgwater House 

Jays Close 

Basingstoke Hampshire 

RG22 4BS 

Information covers fuel use from winter 
maintenance vehicles. 

Street Lighting Patrick Cant 

Arthur Laughton 

Patrick.Cant@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

Arthur.Laughton@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

01522 555574 

01522 555570 

Senior Engineer 

Engineer 

Crown House 

 

Annual electricity consumption for Street 
Lights and traffic and Signals. 

Water Nathaniel Dyas Nathaniel.Dyas@kier.co.uk 

 

01522 836279 Lead Energy Engineer 

 

2
nd

 Floor 

County Offices Newland 

Lincoln 

LN1 1YL 

Covers water usage at all LCC buildings and 
maintained schools. 

 

P
age 82

mailto:Andy.McGinn@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:James.Geraghty@kier.co.uk
mailto:luke.jones@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:James.Geraghty@kier.co.uk
mailto:James.Geraghty@kier.co.uk
mailto:Patrick.Cant@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:Arthur.Laughton@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:Nathaniel.Dyas@kier.co.uk


Lincolnshire County Council Summary 
Carbon Management Plan  
2018-2023 
December 2018 
Version: Final 

 

P
age 83



Carbon management progress review 

1 

CMP 1 

Achieved a 20% reduction on the 
2005/6 baseline by March 2012 

CMP 2 

Achieved a 22% reduction on the 
2011/12 baseline by March 2018 

CMP 3 

Aiming to achieve a further 20% 
reduction in emissions by 2023 

  

Reduced our footprint by 14,504 tonnes of carbon and reduced related costs by £9.4 million 

Cumulative carbon savings over the past 5 years have reached 37,010 tonnes of carbon 

Looking ahead to CMP 3, which sets out our strategy and action plan for continuing to reduce carbon 
emissions over the next 5 years 

P
age 84



2 

Why is carbon management important to LCC? 

Climate Change Act: LCC believes that our activities shall align to the 80% emissions reduction target 
by 2050 and any future international/national commitments 

Leadership: Implementing this plan will demonstrate that LCC is committed to an innovative and 
creative approach to reducing carbon emissions and adapting to climate change 

Cost savings: Implementing an effective carbon management plan will help to save money on 
the cost of energy, water, transport and waste and contribute to the efficient use of Council 
resources 

Reputation: Our creative and innovative approach will stimulate a regional low carbon 
transition and strengthen relationships between the public sector and local businesses, while 
enhancing the public image of the Council.   

Building regulations: The actions detailed in the carbon management plan will help to ensure that 
LCC remains compliant with current and future building regulations 

Local area drivers: Our 3rd Carbon Management Plan has been developed alongside the following 
strategies (Adaption, Decarbonisation of transport, Waste management and Local Industrial Strategy). 
As a consequence the plan covers a broader range of carbon management activities 

2 

1 

4 

5 

6 

3 

P
age 85



3 

Current footprint of the council  

Before we set reduction targets, it is important to understand our current emissions footprint   

 
2016/17 Baseline 

statistics 
   
  

 

Energy 

 

Transport 

 

Water 

 

Total 

  

Baseline CO2e emissions (tonnes) 

  

23,783 

  

  

4,635 

  

262 

  

  

28,679 

  

Baseline Cost (£) 

  

  

£5,629,370 

  

  

£4,416,076 

  

  

£647,374 

  

  

£10,692,819 

P
age 86



4 

Current footprint of the council  

82.9% 

16.2% 0.9% 

Breakdown of carbon 
emissions (CO2e) 

Energy Transport Water

52.6% 
41.3% 

6.1% 

Breakdown of carbon 
related costs (£) 

Energy Transport Water

Carbon intensity of transport will generate a higher saving per kgCO2e saved 

P
age 87



5 

Carbon reduction target 2018-2023 

Our vision is to maintain a leading role in local efforts to reduce the impacts of climate change. 
To achieve this aim we have set a target that is challenging, yet realistic. Saving 5,736 tCO2 over 

5 years. 

20,000

22,000

24,000

26,000

28,000

30,000

32,000

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

C
O

2
e
 E

m
is

s
io

n
s
 (

to
n
n
e
s
) 

Comparison of Emissions with predicted Business As Usual (BAU) increase and reduction targets  

BAU 20% reduction

We will reduce 

the carbon 

emissions from 

our activities by 

20% by 2023, 

from a 2016/17 

baseline of 

28,679 tonnes 

CO2e. 

  

TARGET FOR 2023 

P
age 88



6 

Why reach this target? 

 Cost savings 

 Raised awareness 

of climate change 

amongst staff, 

stakeholders and 

the public 

 Positive 

community 

leadership 

 Contribute towards 

national targets 

 Compliance with 

legislation 

  

BENEFITS OF 
ACHIEVING THE 

TARGET 

£9

£10

£11

£12

£13

£14

£15

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

C
o
s
t 

(£
m

) 

Comparison of Carbon related costs with Business As Usual (BAU) increases and reduction targets 

BAU 20% reduction

With no action on carbon, annual utility costs for LCC could increase from £10.7m to £14.2m by 2023 – an 
increase of approx. £3.5m. Achieving a 20% reduction in carbon emissions over the whole five years could 

result in cumulative savings of £12.4m (as shown by hatched area). Estimates include a prediction of 
energy/resource price inflation of 4% annually, hence even in a 20% reduction scenario, overall prices increase. 

P
age 89



7 

Planned carbon saving projects 

The projects we will implement to reduce carbon emissions include: 

Heating/cooling system upgrades 

Lighting upgrades and improved lighting controls 

Deployment of zero-carbon technologies 

Installation of efficient LED lighting technology across 
LCC owned buildings, alongside the replacement of 
Sodium Street Lighting Ballasts to LED fittings. 
Upgrading to LED fittings will help to achieve savings of 
almost 300 tonnes of CO2 per year. 
 

The rollout of  roof mounted Solar PV installations across 
LCC owned buildings, alongside the implementation of 
the Fenland Green Power Solar PV scheme, where PVs 
will be installed across four local schools in the Market 
Deeping Area. 

Building fabric improvements 

Improved building controls 

The implementation of a boiler replacement 
programme, to upgrade the heating systems across the 
buildings of LCC based on condition ratings. Savings of 
up to £15,500 annually are predicted.  

Insulation projects to focus on upgrading fabric 
elements (windows, roofs) across LCC’s portfolio on an 
annual basis, prioritising upgrades based on condition 
rating. This will help to achieve annual savings of 35.7 
tonnes of CO2.   

We have also adopted an annual programme which 
focuses on upgrading the building heating controls 
(BMS) across our building portfolio. Success will be 
measured by analysing consumption changes. 

We will also commission a feasibility study which 
analyses the potential of using street lighting columns 
as Electric Vehicle charging points.  

P
age 90



8 

Governance & reporting 

Others (staff, 
key partner 

organisations, 
etc.) as per 

Communications 
Plan 

Corporate 
Management 

Board 

Executive 

Directorate 

Management 

Teams 

  

Environmental 
Scrutiny 

Committee 

Reporting to 

  

Information flow 

Full Council 

Environment 

Programme 

Board 

Chaired by 

County 

Commissioner 

– Economy & 

Place 

To ensure that carbon management is 
maintained, as an organisational priority, it 

needs to be considered as part of our decision 
making. Andy Gutherson, the County 

Commissioner - Economy & Place, holds overall 
responsibility for the implementation of this 
carbon management plan, with day to day 

management of the Plan being carried out by 
the Sustainability Team coordinating the 
activity to ensure results are achieved. 

P
age 91



9 

Governance & reporting 

Robust data will provide the basis to monitor and report on the results of our actions and it will help us to 
drive positive behaviour change.  

Action Description 

Annual reporting The project leader will compile an annual report focusing on the performance and progress of the carbon 
management programme, whilst updating on greenhouse gas emissions and carbon baseline data. The 
report will be made available on the council’s website. 

Regular reporting The Sustainability Team will report on the progress of the carbon management programme quarterly to the 
Corporate Environment Programme Board. The report will provide an overall summary, progress against 
individual projects, key milestones, top risks and issues. 

Communication 
to stakeholders 

We will communicate our performance to staff and other stakeholders and use this as an opportunity to 
raise awareness of the carbon implications of their behaviour. A project to communicate to staff and the 
public messages about environmental matters including carbon savings is planned. 

Data management We will continue to ensure that the data, figures, and assumptions that are used throughout the carbon 
management plan are robust. Ensuring the data being used is effective, forms a critical part of our plan and 
will continue to underpin our strategy as we monitor implementation progress.  

P
age 92


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting of the Executive held on 5 March 2019
	5 Carbon Management Plan 2018-2023
	Appendix A
	Appendix B


